
 

South Haven Department of Public Works is Barrier-free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon 
seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City Clerk. Individuals with disabilities requiring services should contact the 
City Clerk by writing or calling South Haven City Hall at (269) 637-0750. 
 

Board of Public Utilities 
 

 
Workshop Agenda 
 
Monday, March 25, 2013 
4:00 p.m., DPW Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue 
 

                                         City of South Haven 

 

 
1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Board will be requested to review water, sewer, and electric rate adjustments for 
Fiscal Year 2013 – 2014 beginning on July 1, 2013. 

 
4. Adjourn 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 

Roger Huff, PE 
Public Works Director 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 1 of 46



Board of Public Utilities 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, March 25, 2013 
4:45 p.m., DPW Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue 
 

                                         City of South Haven 

 

 
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
4. Acceptance of Minutes for the Record – February 26, 2013 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REPORTS 
 
6. Cost of Energy from Indiana-Michigan Power Company (AEP) 

A. 2013 Billings – All Charges 
B. 2012 Billings – All Charges 
 

7. Financial Reports 
A. Water Fund CuFt Comparisons 
B. Water Fund Financial Statement 
C. Sewer Fund Financial Statement 
D. Electric Fund KWH Comparisons 
E. Electric Fund Financial Statement 

 
8. Indian Grove Infrastructure Project 

A. Sewer Study Progress Report 
 
9. Unresolved Issues Report 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
10. Board will be requested to approve award of Bid Number 2013-06, Meijer Store 

Electrical Service Installation. 
 

11. Board will be requested to approve water, sewer, and electric rate adjustments for 
Fiscal Year 2013 – 2014 beginning on July 1, 2013. 

 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 of 46



 

South Haven Department of Public Works is Barrier-free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon 
seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City Clerk. Individuals with disabilities requiring services should contact the 
City Clerk by writing or calling South Haven City Hall at (269) 637-0750. 

12. Next meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 29, 2013 at 4:00 pm in the DPW 
Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue, South Haven, Michigan. 

 
13. Director’s Comments 
 
14. Board Member Comments 
 
15. Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Roger Huff, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 3 of 46



 

 

Board of Public Utilities 
 

 
Special Meeting Minutes 
 
Tuesday, February 26, 2013 
4:00 p.m., DPW Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue 
 

                                         City of South Haven 
 
 

1. Call to Order by Stickland at 4:00 p.m.                  
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present:  Berry, Burr, Overhiser, Rose, Stein, Stickland, Winkel 
Absent:  Henry, Overhiser 
 
Also in Attendance:  Roger Huff, Larry Halberstadt, Wendy Hochstedler, Rob Shelley, Ken 
Demlow, Tina Roncalli, Ed Finamore 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
 Motion by Burr, second by Berry to approve the February 26, 2013 special meeting agenda 

as presented. 
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
4. Acceptance of Minutes for the Record – January 28, 2013 
 

Motion by Berry, second by Burr to accept the January 28, 2013 regular meeting minutes 
with correction to item 10. 

 
All in favor.  Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

Burr questioned if fees for insufficient funds can be billed to the customer.  Hochstedler 
noted that we do pass insufficient check fees on to the customer. 

 
REPORTS 
 
6. Cost of Energy from Indiana-Michigan Power Company (AEP) 

A. 2013 Billings – All Charges (includes cost per kWh) 
B. 2012 Billings – All Charges (includes cost per kWh) 

 
The format for 2013 has been changed to show the most recent month at the top. 
 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 4 of 46



February 26, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Special Meeting Minutes  
Draft 
 

 2

Winkel arrived at 4:12 PM 
 
7. Financial Reports 
 

A. Water Fund CuFt Comparisons 
B. Water Fund Financial Statement 
C. Sewer Fund Financial Statement 
D. Electric Fund KWH Comparisons 
E. Electric Fund Financial Statement 
 

8. Indian Grove Infrastructure Project 
A. Sewer Study Progress Report 
 
Huff reviewed the progress report, denoting the potential infiltration and inflow sources in the 
Peterson Drain Ravine. 

 
9. Unresolved Issues Report 
 

Huff gave an overview of unresolved issues, noting those completed and those pending.  No 
new issues were noted at the last meeting. 
 
Burr requested that tree trimming be added to the report as an ongoing issue. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
10. Board will be requested to consider the following actions regarding Advanced 

Metering Infrastructure (AMI): 
A. Board will be requested to approve a recommendation to enter into a contract with 

ACLARA for AMI and water and electric meter replacement.  
B. Board will be requested to approve a recommendation to enter into a professional 

services contract with Valutech Solutions Inc. for assistance with AMI contract 
negotiations and implementation. 
 

Huff presented the staff report.  The City received three proposals on March 26, 2012.  One 
proposal was rejected as being not compliant with the RFP.  Rob Shelley and Ken Demlow 
were hired to review the proposals and make a recommendation.  After evaluation, the 
system proposed by ACLARA was determined to best meet the needs of the City.  The 
system will utilize a fixed base radio system for water meter reading and a power line carrier 
system for electric meter reading. 
 
Action was tabled until the next meeting.  Staff will prepare additional information on 
financing and review the proposal with ACLARA prior to returning to request Board action. 
 
Rose departed at 6:16 PM 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 5 of 46



February 26, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Special Meeting Minutes  
Draft 
 

 3

11. Board will consider a written request from Cost Control Associates, Inc. (representing 
Wal-Mart) to change the application definition for the industrial and municipal 
customers’ electric rate. 

 
Burr noted that the customer does not meet the definition of an Industrial Customer.  It was 
also noted that the City spent approximately $800,000 to construct sewer and water main 
extensions to the east side of I-196 at the time that Wal-Mart was constructed. 
 
Motion by Burr, second by Stickland to deny the request to reclassify Wal-Mart as an 
Industrial Customer.   

 
12. Next meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 25, 2013 at 4:00 pm in the DPW 

Conference Room, 1199 8th Avenue, South Haven, Michigan. 
 

Stickland and Berry will be absent from the next scheduled meeting. 
 
13. Director’s Comments 

 
Roger received the ACEC/Michigan 2013 Engineering and Surveying Excellence for the 
New Water Filtration Plant project. 

 
14. Board Member Comments 
 

None. 
 

15. Adjourn 
 

Motion by Winkel, second by Berry to adjourn at 6:23 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Larry Halberstadt, PE 
City Engineer 
 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 6 of 46



PJM Open Access Transmission Tariff

Date
KW

Demand
KVAR

Demand KVA
Power
Factor

KW
Demand

KVAR
Demand KWHRS

$ KW
Demand

$
KWHR

 $ Fuel
Charge

$ Fuel
Adjust

Actual
Fuel True-up

Sch 1A
$ KWHRS

$ Network RTO 
Start-up $ Other Credits

Total
PJM

Total
Cost

cts/
KWHR

Main 11,561 1,160 11,619 0.9950 11,561 1,160 6,250,121 $162,593.97 $75,807.72
Welder 130 305 332 0.3914 130 305 137,266 $1,825.51 $1,664.90

Phoenix 7,514 864 7,563 0.9935 7,514 864 4,148,351 $105,675.56 $50,315.35
Welder 22 45 50 0.4456 22 45 14,696 $313.63 $178.25
Feb-13 19,227 2,374 19,373 0.9925 19,227 2,374 10,550,434 $270,408.67 $127,966.22 $159,918.21 $744.86 $9,033.45 $701.53 $50,502.94 $186.55 $7,727.55 ($899.26) $58,219.31 $626,290.72 5.936

Main 7,956 1,231 8,051 0.9882 7,956 1,231 6,835,812 $111,896.42 $82,911.57
Welder 24 351 352 0.0687 356 351 170,192 $5,006.78 $2,064.25

Phoenix 11,518 926 11,555 0.9968 11,518 926 4,535,845 $161,990.98 $55,015.26
Welder 356 46 359 0.9918 24 46 18,216 $340.35 $220.94
Jan-13 19,855 2,554 20,018 0.9918 19,855 2,554 11,560,064 $279,234.53 $140,212.02 $175,221.67 ($11,764.68) $18,342.99 $768.66 $55,913.96 $206.53 $7,727.55 ($1,124.11) $63,492.59 $664,739.12 5.750

Year to Date 2013: 22,110,499 $1,291,030 5.839

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
Cost of Electric Energy from Indiana-Michigan Power Company (AEP)

2013
ACTUAL BILLING COST

AEP Electric Bill-All Charges 2013.xls 1 of 2 3/11/2013

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 7 of 46



AEP Electric Bill-All Charges 2013 2 of 2 3/15/2013

PJM Open Access Transmission Tariff

Date
KW

Demand
KVAR

Demand KVA
Power
Factor

KW
Demand

KVAR
Demand KWHRS

$ KW
Demand

$
KWHR

 $ Fuel
Charge

$ Fuel
Adjust

Actual
Fuel True-up

Sch 1A
$ KWHRS

$ Network RTO 
Start-up $ Other Credits

Total
PJM

Total
Cost

cts/
KWHR

Main 11,992 1,726 12,116 0.9898 11,992 1,726 7,258,601 $175,538.81 $88,450.41
Welder 309 328 451 0.6861 309 328 153,255 $4,526.07 $1,867.50

Phoenix 7,708 874 7,757 0.9936 7,707 874 4,477,882 $112,822.34 $54,565.67
Welder 38 62 73 0.5264 38 62 23,707 $559.17 $288.88
Jan-12 20,047 2,990 20,269 0.9891 20,047 2,990 11,913,444 $293,446.39 $145,172.46 $195,737.44 ($1,504.66) $18,840.08 $1,130.95 $81,705.56 $274.86 $7,764.31 ($1,605.84) $89,269.84 $740,961.55 6.220

Main 11,246 1,489 11,344 0.9913 11,246 1,489 6,660,702 $164,619.02 $81,164.65
Welder 356 420 550 0.6466 356 420 170,777 $5,208.20 $2,081.02

Phoenix 7,083 787 7,127 0.9939 7,083 787 4,106,471 $103,685.35 $50,039.81
Welder 10 30 31 0.3085 10 30 6,689 $140.52 $81.51
Feb-12 18,695 2,726 18,892 0.9895 18,695 2,726 10,944,640 $273,653.09 $133,367.00 $179,820.02 ($35,803.12) ($36,698.09) $1,038.98 $76,434.23 $257.13 $7,764.54 ($1,303.19) $84,191.69 $598,530.59 5.469

Main 11,229 2,433 11,490 0.9773 11,229 2,433 6,659,854 $164,369.52 $81,154.32
Welder 245 291 380 0.6442 245 291 180,979 $3,581.92 $2,205.34

Phoenix 7,798 2,001 8,050 0.9686 7,798 2,001 4,202,080 $114,142.73 $51,204.86
Welder 11 34 36 0.2995 11 34 7,398 $158.09 $90.15
Mar-12 19,282 4,759 19,861 0.9709 19,282 4,759 11,050,311 $282,252.26 $134,654.67 $181,556.19 ($16,811.90) $3,379.59 $1,049.01 $81,705.56 $274.86 $7,768.31 ($1,217.13) $89,580.61 $674,611.42 6.105

Main 10,627 1,593 10,746 0.9890 10,627 1,593 6,305,565 $155,559.49 $76,837.09
Welder 332 293 443 0.7501 332 293 147,837 $4,859.82 $1,801.48

Phoenix 6,679 902 6,739 0.9910 6,679 902 3,935,313 $97,765.55 $47,954.14
Welder 9 32 34 0.2802 9 32 7,231 $137.60 $88.11
Apr-12 17,647 2,820 17,871 0.9875 17,647 2,820 10,395,945 $258,322.45 $126,680.83 $170,804.99 ($14,733.10) $40,292.41 $986.89 $79,069.90 $265.99 $8,032.02 ($1,177.43) $87,177.37 $668,544.95 6.431

Main 14,868 3,529 15,281 0.9730 14,868 3,529 6,982,457 $217,637.42 $85,085.43
Welder 9 22 23 0.3633 9 22 161,210 $124.42 $1,964.44

Phoenix 11,010 3,754 11,633 0.9465 11,010 3,754 4,593,576 $161,166.94 $55,975.48
Welder 9 23 25 0.3638 9 23 7,021 $133.21 $85.56
May-12 25,896 7,328 26,913 0.9622 25,896 7,328 11,744,265 $379,061.99 $143,110.91 $192,957.82 $12,775.38 $48,832.40 $1,114.88 $81,705.56 $274.86 $7,731.13 ($1,641.24) $89,185.19 $865,923.69 7.373

Main 16,941 5,210 17,724 0.9558 16,941 5,210 7,846,934 $238,261.81 $95,175.47
Welder 295 108 314 0.9388 295 108 153,300 $4,148.88 $1,859.38

Phoenix 12,351 4,745 13,231 0.9335 12,351 4,745 5,260,728 $173,700.24 $63,807.37
Welder 9 24 25 0.3571 9 24 6,972 $127.98 $84.56
Jun-12 29,596 10,087 31,268 0.9465 29,596 10,087 13,267,935 $416,238.92 $160,926.78 $201,108.72 $48,449.19 ($309,170.24) $1,259.53 $79,069.90 $265.99 $9,839.06 ($1,359.24) $89,075.24 $606,628.61 4.572

Main 20,496 6,532 21,512 0.9528 20,496 6,532 10,295,162 $288,255.60 $124,870.02
Welder 8 22 23 0.3253 8 22 128,982 $105.48 $1,564.42

Phoenix 15,340 6,482 16,653 0.9212 15,340 6,482 7,035,099 $215,745.84 $85,328.72
Welder 9 19 21 0.4242 9 19 6,927 $125.17 $84.01

Jul-12 35,853 13,054 38,155 0.9396 35,853 13,054 17,466,170 $504,232.09 $211,847.17 $264,743.47 ($19,193.57) ($40,623.32) $1,161.37 $78,298.01 $274.86 $10,546.62 ($1,585.43) $88,695.43 $1,009,701.27 5.781
Main 18,275 5,807 19,175 0.9530 18,275 5,807 8,491,292 $257,020.09 $102,990.88

Welder 396 292 492 0.8050 396 292 177,889 $5,572.16 $2,157.62
Phoenix 13,609 5,565 14,703 0.9256 13,609 5,565 5,682,143 $191,397.47 $68,918.72
Welder 9 22 23 0.3831 9 22 7,129 $126.58 $86.46
Aug-12 32,289 11,686 34,339 0.9403 32,289 11,686 14,358,453 $454,116.29 $174,153.68 $217,638.25 ($35,392.15) ($81,153.32) $954.73 $78,298.01 $274.86 $11,047.37 ($1,692.02) $88,882.95 $818,245.70 5.699

Main 14,899 4,209 15,482 0.9623 14,899 4,209 6,811,660 $209,539.40 $82,618.62
Welder 168 282 328 0.5108 168 282 133,197 $2,355.72 $1,615.54

Phoenix 10,722 3,804 11,377 0.9424 10,722 3,804 4,529,165 $150,796.94 $54,934.24
Welder 9 28 30 0.3142 9 28 7,124 $132.20 $86.40
Sep-12 25,798 8,323 27,108 0.9517 25,798 8,323 11,481,145 $362,824.25 $139,254.81 $174,025.46 $9,809.49 $50,997.46 $763.41 $75,772.27 $265.99 $10,863.70 ($1,487.44) $86,177.93 $823,089.40 7.169

Main 10,168 1,680 10,306 0.9866 10,168 1,680 6,194,885 $143,002.86 $75,137.76
Welder 317 308 441 0.7173 317 308 134,487 $4,452.66 $1,631.19

Phoenix 7,222 1,552 7,387 0.9777 7,222 1,552 4,209,479 $101,574.54 $51,056.77
Welder 9 32 33 0.2720 9 32 7,059 $127.98 $85.62
Oct-12 17,716 3,572 18,072 0.9803 17,716 3,572 10,545,910 $249,158.05 $127,911.34 $159,849.63 ($4,356.52) $29,460.67 $701.23 $78,298.01 $274.86 $10,244.30 ($1,395.97) $88,122.43 $650,145.60 6.165

Main 10,566 781 10,595 0.9973 10,566 781 6,216,737 $148,600.36 $75,402.80
Welder 368 417 556 0.6616 368 417 126,491 $5,170.00 $1,534.20

Phoenix 7,089 1,514 7,249 0.9780 7,089 1,514 4,108,928 $99,699.70 $49,837.19
Welder 23 37 43 0.5233 23 37 14,002 $317.85 $169.83
Nov-12 18,045 2,748 18,253 0.9886 18,045 2,748 10,466,158 $253,787.90 $126,944.03 $158,640.78 ($28,994.40) ($41,615.71) $695.92 $75,772.27 $265.99 $9,303.79 ($1,436.03) $84,601.94 $553,364.54 5.287

Main 10,705 1,261 10,779 0.9931 10,705 1,261 6,787,395 $150,555.96 $82,324.31
Welder 377 415 560 0.6720 377 415 148,364 $5,295.10 $1,799.51

Phoenix 7,343 655 7,372 0.9961 7,343 655 4,178,180 $103,277.02 $50,677.15
Welder 23 50 55 0.4172 23 50 17,856 $323.47 $216.57
Dec-12 18,448 2,381 18,601 0.9918 18,448 2,381 11,131,795 $259,451.55 $135,017.54 $168,730.19 ($8,247.55) ($3,456.95) $740.18 $78,298.01 $274.86 $9,295.18 ($1,651.61) $86,956.62 $638,451.40 5.735

Total for 2012: 144,766,169 $8,648,199 5.974

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
Cost of Electric Energy from Indiana-Michigan Power Company (AEP)

2012
ACTUAL BILLING COST

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 8 of 46



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
WATER FUND

CuFt COMPARISONS
ROLLING TWELVE MONTHS

CuFt PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
GALLONS CuFt CuFt WATER BILLED PLUS PLANT TAP BILLED PLUS PLANT TAP
PUMPED PUMPED PLANT TAP QUALITY CuFt TO PUMPED TO MAINS TO PUMPED TO MAINS
TO MAINS TO MAINS UNBILLED FLUSHING BILLED (ROLLING 12 MOS) CURRENT MONTH

FISCAL 2011
July 2010 71,789,000 9,597,460 76,067 26,738 7,160,179 89.90% 75.40%
August 2010 70,411,000 9,413,235 79,151 17,647 8,560,179 89.47% 91.78%
September 2010 53,052,000 7,092,513 82,706 246,830 7,497,785 88.65% 106.88%
October 2010 40,104,000 5,361,497 75,128 213,904 5,242,069 87.99% 99.17%
November 2010 30,513,000 4,079,278 82,706 213,904 3,856,631 88.94% 96.57%
December 2010 34,709,000 4,640,241 76,248 213,904 3,452,281 88.54% 76.04%
January 2011 32,649,000 4,364,840 70,210 213,904 3,232,165 88.34% 75.66%
February 2011 33,847,000 4,525,000 66,376 213,904 3,209,045 87.74% 72.38%
March 2011 35,054,000 4,686,364 74,020 213,904 3,124,071 87.00% 68.24%
April 2011 30,789,000 4,116,176 76,855 213,904 2,952,560 87.03% 73.60%
May 2011 42,942,000 5,740,909 54,069 202,504 3,571,271 86.49% 62.21%
June 2011 54,884,000 7,337,433 77,139 119,736 5,758,969 85.43% 78.49%

530,743,000 70,954,947 890,676 2,110,782 57,617,205

FISCAL 2012
July 2011 68,313,000 9,132,754 0 190,312 7,441,256 85.55% 81.48%
August 2011 59,907,000 8,008,957 103,610 244,928 7,402,180 84.90% 93.72%
September 2011 50,823,000 6,794,519 19,658 231,936 6,658,175 85.02% 98.28%
October 2011 38,457,000 5,141,310 23,888 231,936 4,862,072 85.07% 95.03%
November 2011 30,875,000 4,127,674 4,273 231,936 3,573,435 85.44% 86.68%
December 2011 30,441,000 4,069,652 17,174 231,936 3,191,493 85.57% 78.84%
January 2012 32,467,000 4,340,508 14,319 68,972 3,074,589 85.44% 71.16%
February 2012 29,495,000 3,943,182 23,262 68,972 3,219,167 85.84% 82.23%
March 2012 30,150,000 4,030,749 38,320 65,764 3,450,952 86.13% 86.57%
April 2012 32,927,000 4,402,005 31,678 68,972 3,378,738 86.74% 77.47%
May 2012 50,646,000 6,770,856 37,087 78,956 4,537,251 86.12% 67.01%
June 2012 72,150,000 9,645,722 41,402 144,360 6,461,594 84.46% 66.99%

526,651,000 70,407,888 354,672 1,858,980 57,250,902

FISCAL 2013
July 2012 97,223,000 12,997,727 42,043 149,172 9,601,173 81.95% 74.19%
August 2012 73,095,000 9,772,059 40,244 227,566 10,549,444 83.36% 108.37%
September 2012 51,928,000 6,942,246 36,348 218,946 7,875,634 84.80% 113.97%
October 2012 37,774,000 5,050,000 27,350 259,447 4,949,605 85.50% 98.55%
November 2012 28,082,000 3,754,278 16,894 255,838 3,275,439 86.15% 87.70%
December 2012 27,941,000 3,735,428 34,835 160,400 3,150,827 86.30% 85.28%
January 2013 29,090,000 3,889,037 35,639 83,007 3,204,712 86.22% 83.32%
February 2013 27,257,000 3,643,984 25,791 72,180 3,368,685 86.69% 93.15%

372,390,000 49,784,759 259,143 1,426,556 45,975,519

Prior Year-to-Date 340,778,000 45,558,556 206,184 1,500,928 39,422,367
Two Years Prior 367,074,000 49,074,064 608,592 1,360,734 42,210,334

Audit- Water treated vs. billings 3/19/2013

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 9 of 46



Col 6 & 11

Revenues: Month Actual
Monthly 
Budget Prior year MTD

MTD 
Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance 
to Prior Year

YTD 
Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual Variance to Budget

Variance to 
Prior Year

2012-13
Amended 

Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Sales 133,847$                162,946$       114,207$         (29,099)$       19,640$           1,486,470$              1,303,568$          1,164,643$                               182,902$                  321,828$         1,955,352$       76%
Debt Service Charges 107,528$                108,038$       88,880$           (509)$            18,648$           958,370$                 864,300$             749,017$                                  94,070$                    209,353$         1,296,450$       74%
Charges for Service 4,571                      5,917             4,899               (1,345)           (328)                 47,170                     47,333                 33,494                                      (163)                          13,676             71,000              66%
Interest Income 3                             208                131                  (205)              (128)                 723                          1,667                   1,413                                        (943)                          (690)                 2,500                29%
Special Assessment Revenue 9,003                      1,154             15,733             7,849            (6,730)              14,586                     9,229                   39,404                                      5,357                        (24,817)            13,844              105%
Other Revenue 425                         2,500             1,759               (2,075)           (1,334)              32,061                     20,000                 22,232                                      12,061                      9,829               30,000              107%
Total Revenues 255,377$                280,762$       225,610$         (25,385)$       29,767$           2,539,381$              2,246,097$          2,010,202$                               293,284$                  529,179$         3,369,146$       

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Expenses: Month Actual
Monthly 
Budget Prior year MTD

MTD 
Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance 
to Prior Year 0

YTD 
Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual Variance to Budget

Variance to 
Prior Year

2012-13
Amended 

Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Operating Expenses 101,002$                108,488$       90,969$           (7,486)$         10,033$           748,292$                 867,905$             764,651$                                  (119,613)$                 (16,358)$          1,301,858$       57%
Property Tax Equivalents 7,103                      7,103             7,103               0                   -                   56,825                     56,825                 56,825                                      (0)                              -                   85,238              67%
Capital Outlay 336                         23,417           198,202           (23,081)         (197,866)          173,682                   187,333               220,275                                    (13,651)                     (46,593)            281,000            62%
Debt Service -                         117,306         -                   (117,306)       -                   694,913                   938,444               820,775                                    (243,531)                   (125,863)          1,407,666         49%
Transfers Out 5,621                      2,917             10,891             2,705            (5,270)              6,581                       23,333                 24,865                                      (16,752)                     (18,284)            35,000              19%
Depreciation 47,917                    47,917           16,307             -                31,610             383,333                   383,333               130,456                                    -                            252,877           575,000            67%
Administrative Expenses 14,317                    17,269           13,125             (2,952)           1,192               143,726                   138,154               146,237                                    5,572                        (2,511)              207,231            69%
Total Expenses 176,296$                324,416$       336,598$         (148,120)$     (160,302)$        2,207,353$              2,595,329$          2,164,084$                               (387,975)$                 43,269$           3,892,993$       

Net Fund Change 79,081$                  (43,654)$        (110,988)$        122,735$      190,069$         332,028$                 (349,231)$            (153,882)$                                681,260$                  485,910$         (523,847)$         

City of South Haven
Water Fund - Fund 591

For the period ended February 28, 2013

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 10 of 46



City of South Haven
Water Fund - Fund 591

For the period ended February 28, 2013

Breakdown:
AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 Cash/Investments 1,088,381$            (Including Debt Fund 372)

Retained Earnings 6,848,710$         Other Current Assets 1,346,636$          
Less Net Capital Assets (Net of related Debt) (5,123,395)$        Current Liabilities (770,283)$            
Less Restricted cash for revenue bond retirement (60,581)$             

 Net Undesignated Reserves Thru 6/30/12 1,664,734$         Net Working Capital 1,664,734$          Thru 6/30/12

AS OF CURRENT MONTH END
Retained Earnings-FYE 6,848,710$         
Less Net Capital Assets (5,123,395)$        Breakdown:

Less Restricted Cash-Debt (60,581)$             
 Net Undesignated Reserves June 30 1,664,734$         Cash/Investments 1,644,066$          

Net Income Per Income Statement  Revenue > Expenses Thru 2/28/13 332,028$            Other Current Assets 954,947$             
  Add back Non-cash Deprectiation Expense 383,333$            Current Liabilities (218,917)$            

2,380,096$         Net Working Capital 2,380,096$          Thru 2/28/13

PROJECTED BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2013   Based on Amended Budget
Retained Earnings-FYE 6,848,710$         
Less Net Capital Assets (5,123,395)$        Breakdown:

Less Restricted Cash-Debt (60,581)$             
 Net Undesignated Reserves June 30 1,664,734$         Cash/Investments 1,139,534$          

Net Income Per Income Statement  Revenue < Expenses Projected thru 6/30/13 (523,847)$           Other Current Assets 1,346,636$          Assume Similar to PFY
  Add back Non-cash Deprectiation Expense 575,000$            Current Liabilities (770,283)$            Assume Similar to PFY

1,715,887$         Net Working Capital 1,715,887$          Projected thru 6/30/13 

The Net Working Capital is shown here for June 30, 2012, Current Month Ended, and projected at June 30, 2013.  The amounts represent what is left over after all of the short-term 
been met and represents the relatively liquid portion of the Utility's retained earnings or reserves that can be used for future expenditures.

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 11 of 46



Col 6 & 11

Revenues: Month Actual Monthly Budget
Prior year 

MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual Variance to Budget
Variance to 
Prior Year

2012-13
Amended 
Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Sales 147,988$            180,319$            148,179$       (32,331)$             (191)$                  1,407,943$             1,442,549$      1,363,453$                     (34,605)$                44,490$         2,163,823$       65%
IPP Revenues 17,300                8,402                  13,092           8,898                  4,208                  64,677                    67,216             54,108                            (2,539)                    10,569           100,824            64%
Interest Income 8                         625                     48                 (618)                    (41)                     2,281                      5,000               3,416                              (2,719)                    (1,135)           7,500                30%
Special Assessment Revenue 12,156                1,423                  21,223           10,733                (9,067)                 21,120                    11,381             56,301                            9,740                     (35,181)         17,071              124%
Grant Revenue -                     17,383                -                (17,383)               -                     168,059                  139,067           -                                  28,993                   168,059         208,600            81%
Other Revenue -                     292                     100               (292)                    (100)                    1,415                      2,333               3,004                              (918)                       (1,589)           3,500                40%
Total Revenues 177,451$            208,443$            182,641$       (30,992)$             (5,190)$               1,665,496$             1,667,545$      1,480,283$                     (2,049)$                  185,213$       2,501,318$       

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Expenses Month Actual Monthly Budget
Prior year 

MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year 0
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual Variance to Budget
Variance to 
Prior Year

2012-13
Amended 
Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Operating Expenses 79,753$              102,883$            146,651$       (23,131)$             (66,898)$             737,101$                823,066$         713,848$                        (85,965)$                23,252$         1,234,599$       60%
Grant Expense-SSES 28,627                21,894                -                6,733                  28,627                218,689                  175,148           -                                  43,541                   218,689         262,722            83%
Property Tax Equivalents 7,317                  7,317                  7,317            0                         -                     58,533                    58,533             58,533                            (0)                           -                87,800              67%
Capital Outlay 1,712                  25,883                430,090         (24,171)               (428,378)             196,764                  207,067           474,807                          (10,303)                  (278,043)       310,600            63%
Transfers Out 6,871                  20,542                15,180           (13,671)               (8,309)                 43,864                    164,333           88,220                            (120,470)                (44,356)         246,500            18%
Depreciation 22,083                22,083                20,379           -                     1,705                  176,667                  176,667           163,030                          -                         13,637           265,000            67%
Administrative Expenses 21,824                24,711                20,199           (2,887)                 1,625                  198,793                  197,686           201,616                          1,107                     (2,823)           296,529            67%
Total Expenses 168,187$            225,313$            639,815$       (57,126)$             (471,628)$           1,630,411$             1,802,500$      1,700,055$                     (172,089)$              (69,644)$       2,703,750$       

Net Fund Change 9,264$                (16,869)$             (457,173)$      26,134$              466,437$            35,086$                  (134,955)$        (219,772)$                       170,040$               254,858$       (202,432)$         

City of South Haven
Sewer Fund - Fund 592

For the period ended February 28, 2013

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 12 of 46



City of South Haven
Sewer Fund - Fund 592

For the period ended February 28, 2013

Breakdown:
AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 Cash/Investments 938,520$          

Retained Earnings 6,979,106$       Current Assets 726,925$          
Less Net Capital Assets (Net of related Debt) (5,622,267)$      Current Liabilities (308,606)$         

 Net Undesignated Reserves Thru 6/30/12 1,356,839$       Net Working Capital 1,356,839$       Thru 6/30/12

AS OF CURRENT MONTH END
Retained Earnings-FYE 6,979,106$       
Less Net Capital Assets (5,622,267)$      Breakdown:

 Net Undesignated Reserves June 30 1,356,839$       Cash/Investments 918,908$          
Net Income Per Income Statement  Revenue > Expenses Thru 2/28/13 35,086$            Current Assets 809,696$          

  Add back Non-cash Deprectiation Expense 176,667$          Current Liabilities (160,013)$         
1,568,591$       Net Working Capital 1,568,591$       Thru 2/28/13

PROJECTED BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2013   Based on Amended Budget
Retained Earnings-FYE 6,979,106$       
Less Net Capital Assets (5,622,267)$      Breakdown:

 Net Undesignated Reserves June 30 1,356,839$       Cash/Investments 1,001,088$       
Net Income Per Income Statement  Revenue < Expenses Projected thru 6/30/13 (202,432)$        Current Assets 726,925$         Assume Similar to PFY

  Add back Non-cash Deprectiation Expense 265,000$          Current Liabilities (308,606)$         Assume Similar to PFY
1,419,407$       Net Working Capital 1,419,407$       Projected thru 6/30/13 

The Net Working Capital is shown here for June 30, 2012, Current Month Ended, and projected at June 30, 2013.  The amounts represent what is left over after all of the short-term 
obligations have been met and represents the relatively liquid portion of the Utility's retained earnings or reserves that can be used for future expenditures.

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 13 of 46



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
ELECTRIC FUND

KWH COMPARISONS
ROLLING TWELVE MONTHS

PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE
BILLED AND BILLED AND 

TOTAL KWH STREET LTS STREET LTS
KWH KWH KWH STREET LTS BILLED AND TO PURCHASED TO PURCHASED

PURCHASED BILLED STREET LTS 12 MO AVE. STREET LTS (ROLLING 12 MOS) CURRENT MONTH

FISCAL 2011
July 2010 16,257,328 13,438,394 37,192 49,323 13,475,586 92.44% 82.89%
August 2010 15,694,344 14,821,889 41,506 49,424 14,863,395 93.19% 94.71%
September 2010 11,066,633 12,074,098 47,613 49,507 12,121,711 93.30% 109.53%
October 2010 10,969,854 10,132,196 54,196 49,608 10,186,392 93.13% 92.86%
November 2010 10,510,315 10,391,582 61,923 50,014 10,453,505 93.96% 99.46%
December 2010 10,683,209 10,002,716 67,037 50,217 10,069,753 94.60% 94.26%
January 2011 11,953,507 11,068,303 64,924 50,660 11,133,227 94.10% 93.14%
February 2011 10,550,180 11,250,292 61,029 51,221 11,311,321 94.78% 107.21%
March 2011 11,124,090 9,519,380 57,044 51,539 9,576,424 94.28% 86.09%
April 2011 10,242,312 10,338,916 48,737 51,775 10,387,653 94.20% 101.42%
May 2011 11,028,132 9,957,130 44,762 51,986 10,001,892 94.81% 90.69%
June 2011 12,229,714 12,173,212 38,326 52,024 12,211,538 95.42% 99.85%

142,309,618 135,168,108 624,289 135,792,397

FISCAL 2012
July 2011 15,964,582 12,755,514 37,013 52,009 12,792,527 95.31% 80.13%
August 2011 14,632,086 15,136,722 42,500 52,092 15,179,222 95.19% 103.74%
September 2011 11,307,801 12,319,850 47,553 52,087 12,367,403 95.87% 109.37%
October 2011 10,969,854 9,722,952 56,849 52,308 9,779,801 95.46% 89.15%
November 2011 10,739,972 10,221,480 61,585 52,280 10,283,065 95.52% 95.75%
December 2011 11,617,747 9,798,051 68,085 52,367 9,866,136 95.17% 84.92%
January 2012 11,913,417 11,146,773 65,812 52,441 11,212,585 94.66% 94.12%
February 2012 10,944,615 10,940,177 58,568 52,236 10,998,745 95.24% 100.49%
March 2012 11,050,285 10,825,582 58,568 52,363 10,884,150 95.14% 98.50%
April 2012 10,395,921 10,227,215 47,347 52,247 10,274,562 95.46% 98.83%
May 2012 11,744,237 10,681,872 44,415 52,218 10,726,287 95.09% 91.33%
June 2012 13,267,935 10,895,095 38,072 52,197 10,933,167 93.60% 82.40%

144,548,453 134,671,283 626,367 135,297,650

FISCAL 2013
July 2012 17,466,170 14,702,549 38,276 52,303 14,740,825 93.26% 84.40%
August 2012 14,358,453 15,845,089 43,385 52,376 15,888,474 93.50% 110.66%
September 2012 11,481,145 12,211,557 48,595 52,463 12,260,152 94.22% 106.79%
October 2012 10,545,910 9,741,443 54,699 52,284 9,796,142 94.11% 92.89%
November 2012 10,466,158 10,312,656 61,617 52,287 10,374,273 94.68% 99.12%
December 2012 11,131,795 9,798,623 69,065 52,368 9,867,688 94.46% 88.64%
January 2013 11,560,064 10,621,867 68,768 52,615 10,690,635 94.14% 92.48%
February 2013 10,550,434 10,544,686 59,658 52,705 10,604,344 94.21% 100.51%

97,560,129 93,778,470 444,063 94,222,533

Prior Year-to-date 98,090,074 92,041,519 437,965 92,479,484

Two Years Prior 97,685,370 93,179,470 435,420 93,614,890

Page 1 P:\BPU\Audit - Electric Purchases vs. Billings.xls

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 14 of 46



Col 6 & 11

Revenues: Month Actual Monthly Budget Prior year MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual
Variance to 

Budget
Variance to Prior 

Year
2012-13

Amended Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Electric Sales 1,185,948$       1,135,940$        1,150,099$        50,008$             35,849$               10,228,945$         9,087,519$           9,347,005$                         1,141,427$           881,941$              13,631,278$           75%
Charges for Service 58,884$            20,833$             18,989$             38,051$             39,895$               120,870$              166,667$              102,458$                            (45,797)$               18,412$                250,000$                48%
Interest Income 0$                     2,500$               3,745$               (2,500)$              (3,745)$                10,366$                20,000$                28,457$                              (9,634)$                 (18,091)$               30,000$                  35%
Other Revenue 1,696$              2,500$               2,490$               (804)$                 (794)$                   28,163$                20,000$                29,566$                              8,163$                  (1,403)$                 30,000$                  94%
Transfers In -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                   -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                                   -$                     -$                     -$                        
Total Revenues 1,246,528$       1,161,773$        1,175,322$        84,755$             71,206$               10,388,345$         9,294,185$           9,507,486$                         1,094,159$           880,859$              13,941,278$           

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Expenses Month Actual Monthly Budget Prior year MTD
MTD Variance to 

Budget
MTD Variance to 

Prior Year 0
YTD 

Actual YTD Budget Prior YTD Actual
Variance to 

Budget
Variance to Prior 

Year
2012-13

Amended Budget

% of 
Annual 
Budget

Purchased Power 626,291$          796,250$           598,531$           (169,959)$          27,760$               5,784,028$           6,370,000$           6,271,149$                         (585,972)$             (487,122)$             9,555,000$             61%
Other Operating Expenses 151,124$          145,273$           163,316$           5,851$               (12,192)$              1,036,698$           1,162,183$           1,130,665$                         (125,486)$             (93,967)$               1,743,275$             59%
Property Tax Equivalents 54,821$            54,821$             52,312$             -$                   2,508$                 438,566$              438,566$              418,499$                            -$                     20,067$                657,849$                67%
Energy Optimization Costs 43,834$            21,738$             56,956$             22,096$             (13,123)$              154,446$              173,903$              124,913$                            (19,457)$               29,533$                260,854$                59%
Capital Outlay -$                  27,000$             57,424$             (27,000)$            (57,424)$              85,126$                216,000$              214,024$                            (130,874)$             (128,898)$             324,000$                26%
Transfer Out -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                   -$                     130,000$              111,345$              153,767$                            18,655$                (23,767)$               167,018$                78%
Depreciation 40,500$            40,500$             39,510$             -$                   990$                    324,000$              324,000$              316,083$                            -$                     7,917$                  486,000$                67%
Administrative Expenses 51,305$            57,969$             47,025$             (6,664)$              4,280$                 452,014$              463,751$              450,936$                            (11,738)$               1,078$                  695,627$                65%
Total Expenses 967,874$          1,143,550$        1,015,074$        (175,677)$          (47,200)$              8,404,877$           9,259,749$           9,080,036$                         (854,872)$             (675,159)$             13,889,623$           

Net Fund Change 278,654$          18,223$             160,248$           260,431$           118,406$             1,983,468$           34,437$                427,450$                            1,949,031$           1,556,018$           51,655$                  

City of South Haven
Electric Fund - Fund 582

For the period ended February 28, 2013

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 15 of 46



City of South Haven
Electric Fund - Fund 582

For the period ended February 28, 2013

Breakdown:
AS OF JUNE 30, 2012 Cash/Investments 3,546,165$      

Retained Earnings 16,288,783$    Current Assets 2,837,654$      
Less Net Capital Assets (11,198,750)$   Current Liabilities (1,293,786)$    

 Net Undesignated Reserves Thru 6/30/12 5,090,033$      Net Working Capital 5,090,033$      Thru 6/30/12

AS OF CURRENT MONTH END
Retained Earnings-FYE 16,288,783$    
Less Net Capital Assets (11,198,750)$   Breakdown:

 Net Undesignated Reserves June 30 5,090,033$      Cash/Investments 4,921,718$      
Net Income Per Income Statement  Revenue > Expenses Thru 2/28/13 1,983,468$      Current Assets 3,002,228$      
  Add back Non-cash Deprectiation Expense 324,000$         Current Liabilities (526,445)$       

7,397,501$      Net Working Capital 7,397,501$      Thru 2/28/13

PROJECTED BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2013   Based on Amended Budget
Retained Earnings-FYE 16,288,783$    
Less Net Capital Assets (11,198,750)$   Breakdown:

 Net Undesignated Reserves June 30 5,090,033$      Cash/Investments 4,083,820$      
Net Income Per Income Statement  Revenue > Expenses Projected thru 6/30/13 51,655$           Current Assets 2,837,654$      Assume Similar to PFY
  Add back Non-cash Deprectiation Expense 486,000$         Current Liabilities (1,293,786)$    Assume Similar to PFY

5,627,688$      Net Working Capital 5,627,688$      Projected thru 6/30/13 

The Net Working Capital is shown here for June 30, 2012, Current Month Ended, and projected at June 30, 2013.  The amounts represent what is left over after all of the short-term 
obligations have been met and represents the relatively liquid portion of the Utility's retained earnings or reserves that can be used for future expenditures.

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 16 of 46



 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  March 15, 2013 
 
TO: Brian Dissette, City of South Haven 
 Roger Huff, City of South Haven 
 Amanda Morgan, City of South Haven 
 
FROM: Christopher J. Cook, PE 
 
CC: Cindy Clendenon, MDEQ 
 Marcus Tironi, MDEQ 
 Timothy R. Drews, P.E., PTOE, Abonmarche 
 Tony McGhee, Abonmarche 
 Daniel A. Dombos, PE, Abonmarche 
 
RE: City of South Haven – Sewer Study Progress Report 
 
 
The following will summarize our progress to-date on the City of South Haven Sewer 
Study: 
 
UTILITY MAPPING 
 
We have completed this work. This task entailed compiling City record drawings, maps 
and field data into a comprehensive sanitary sewer system map.  We converted city 
GIS information into AutoCAD for presentation, modeling, field investigation and study 
purposes. Draft final maps were submitted to city staff in November, following our 
presentation at the BPU meeting. 
 
FIELD INVESTIGATION AND DATA REVIEW 
 
We have completed field work on the sewer lines to determine the size and slope of key 
runs and mapping that information for the modeling effort. We recently completed 
further investigation of the sewers in the Peterson Ravine Interceptor upstream of 
Clinton Street to the city limits. A significant portion of the I/I appears to be coming from 
the Peterson Ravine interceptor.  
 
 
 
 

30% PCW

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 17 of 46



Brian Dissette 
City of South Haven 

City of South Haven – Sewer Study Progress Report 
February 14, 2013 

Page 2 of 2 

COMPUTER MODELING AND FLOW MONITORING 
 
With metering now complete, efforts have focused on the computer modeling phase. 
Computer modeling, using calibration methods to adjust and fine tune the model, will 
ensure that the results closely match actual flows observed during metering. The results 
will be used to predict the system response during certain large scale wet weather 
events (25 year, 24 hour storm). Modeling work is nearly complete as we are evaluating 
base flows and reviewing the south interceptor in the Peterson Ravine. 
 
SMOKE TESTING 
 
We completed smoke testing of several key areas in the south-central portion of the 
City in June and presented the results to the BPU in June and November.  
 
SEWER TELEVISING 
 
Today we received the final results of the cleaning and televising work. Larry 
Halberstadt helped identify some runs on Dyckman and along the Black River north of 
Dyckman that warranted further analysis. We will be reviewing these videos next week.  
 
SRF PROJECT PLAN 
 
The first two sections have been drafted for internal review. We are roughly 50% complete with 
this task with the bulk of work expected to be completed through April, into May. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OVERALL SCHEDULE 
 
The schedule going forward is expected to proceed as follows: 
Computer Modeling  March 2013 
Project Plan Complete  May 2013 
Public Hearings Conducted May 2013 
Final Plan Adopted   June 2013 
Plan Submitted to DNRE  July 1, 2013 

C:\Documents and Settings\rhuff\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\OLK232\2013-03-15 Sewer Study Progress Report.docx 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 18 of 46



Board of Public Utilities  
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #9 
Prepared by Roger Huff 

Page 1 of 2 
March 25, 2013  

                                              
 
 

Board of Public Utilities Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item # 9 

Unresolved Issues 
 

City of South Haven 

 

 
New items shown in bold text. 
 
Completed items shown with single strikethrough text for one meeting, then double 
strikethrough text for the next meeting, then removed from the list. 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 6/2/10 – Security light costs (material, labor, O & M).  File located, under review. 
 5/23/11 – Welder transformer.  Addressed under agenda item 11 at the July meeting.  

GRP Engineering has been requested to perform an analysis of the cost of the “no load 
losses” associated with these transformers, and to evaluate alternatives.  City staff has 
compiled data and forwarded to GRP.  GRP is proceeding with the analysis. 

 2/27/12 – October 31, 2011 meeting requested staff pursue possible contract language 
change not limiting liability to the amount of the contractor’s insurance; and remove 
statement that the contractor is not liable for making sure the sub-contractors do the 
work properly. 

 3/26/12 – Stickland requested that staff provide the utility policy concerning tampering 
fees for review at the next meeting. Addressed under agenda item 15 at the April 30, 
2012 meeting. MMEA was contacted requesting their assistance in contacting fellow 
members for their policies regarding meter tampering, disconnection or tampering with 
service feeders/pipes, theft of service, and unsealed meter showing consumption.  No 
response has been received from MMEA.  City staff is contacting fellow IMMDA 
members plus Holland, Lowell, and Coldwater.  Policies have been received from  
Bluffton, IN; Coldwater, MI; Holland BPW; Lowell Light & Power; Niles, MI; Sturgis, MI; 
Zeeland BPW.  These policies will be compiled and summarized and distributed to staff 
and the BPU for review and comment. 

 4/30/12 – As a result of the tamper fee discussion with a resident, staff was requested to 
compile a list of electrical and plumbing contractors licensed to work in South Haven for 
the purpose of sending notification letters concerning the tamper policy.  City staff 
contacted the State of Michigan and Michigan Township services, but they could not 
provide specific information.  City of South Haven Building Services has a bulletin board 
available for posting notices.  Suggestion was made to add it to the building permit form 
or instructions.  Start with the City and then work with the townships. 

 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 19 of 46



Board of Public Utilities  
Staff Report 

Agenda Item #9 
Prepared by Roger Huff 

Page 2 of 2 
March 25, 2013  

                                              
 
 

 Board requested information about a power outage (10 second “blip”) that occurred at 
approximately 5:00 a.m. Saturday, September 23, 2012.  Per Kim Hasty, AEP had an 
operation on the 69 KV line from the Bangor side. It caused a blink at the Phoenix 
Substation and a blink on two circuits at the Main Substation. Also, a circuit breaker at 
the main Substation had one operation. This is something that happens when we have 
an operation on that 69 KV circuit.  This blink was not system wide.  Staff was requested 
to investigate records of “blips” (either internal or from I&M) to determine if they have 
increased.  Staff has begun regularly recording substation operations. 
 

 Burr Requested calculation of the cost of electricity per kWh for the calendar year.  
Addressed under item 6. 
 

 2/26/13 – Burr requested that tree trimming be added to the report as an ongoing 
issue.  Huff will add Burr to the distribution of the 515 Report which includes the 
Arborist weekly tree report. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 20 of 46



 
Board of Public Utilities 

Staff Report 
Agenda Item #10 

Page 1 of 2 
March 25, 2013 

 

Board of Public Utilities Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item # 10 

Meijer Store Electrical Service Installation 
 

City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information: 
 

City staff and GRP Engineering prepared a draft total cost estimate based on preliminary 
design for construction of electric facilities associated with Meijer Store #271 and its 
convenience center being constructed at the northeast corner of Phoenix Road and Blue 
Star Highway.  This design presented opportunities to upgrade the City’s electrical system in 
this area.  A redundant Phoenix circuit will be provided which will provide operational 
flexibility with multiple service options available during planned or unplanned outages.  
Based on the total cost estimate, the City and Meijer agreed upon 34% of the improvements 
benefited the City, and 66% provided the electric facilities associated with the store. 
 
The work consists of labor and the materials necessary to install: 

 400 L.F. of 3-phase overhead primary along Wilson Court 
 1000 L.F. of 3-phase underground along the Wilson Court right-of-way under the 

Meijer parking lot east to a fused load center 
 1000 L.F. of 3-phase overhead to the south side of Phoenix Road along 

Pleasantview Road  
 1000 L.F. of overhead along Phoenix Road will be re-conductored and added from 2-

phase to 3-phase 
 3-phase padmount transformer and primary cables to the convenience center.  

 
Bid documents were prepared by GRP Engineering for the total project. On March 18, 2013, 
bids were opened for Bid Number 2013-06.  A copy of the bid tabulation prepared by GRP 
Engineering is attached.  Three (3) bids were received with Kent Power submitting the low 
bid in the total amount of $73,695.37.  GRP Engineering has reviewed the bids and 
recommends the project be awarded to Kent Power for the total amount of $73,695.37. 
 
Meijer’s portion of the bid amount shall be $48,542.40 and the City’s portion shall be 
$25,152.97. 
 
Meijer shall pay 100% of its portion of the total estimated cost prior to construction.  Funds 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2012-13 budget for the electrical system upgrades. 
 

Recommendation: 
 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 21 of 46



 
Board of Public Utilities 

Staff Report 
Agenda Item #10 

Page 2 of 2 
March 25, 2013 

 

Approve a recommendation to City Council to award Bid Number 2013-06 to Kent Power in 
the amount of $73,695.37. Labor and materials to be provided are defined in the contract 
documents prepared by GRP Engineering. 

 
Support Material: 
 

Bid Number 2013-06 Bid Tabulation 
GRP Engineering Recommendation Letter 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Roger Huff, P.E. 
Director 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 22 of 46



BID TABULATION BID #2013-06

OWNER: ENGINEER:
SOUTH HAVEN DPW MEIJER STORE GRP ENGINEERING, INC.
1199 8TH AVE ELETRICAL SERVICE INSTALLATION 660 CASCADE W PKWY SE
SOUTH HAVEN, MI 49090 GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49546

BIDDERS
BID 

SECURITY
CONTRACTOR BASE 

BID PRICE
OWNER-FURNISHED 

MATERIAL
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION 

COST REMARKS
Kent Power
90 Spring St 5% $73,695.37 $80,000.00 $153,695.37

Kent City, MI 49330
The Hydaker-Wheatlake Company

420 N. Roth Street 5% $92,421.80 $80,000.00 $172,421.80
Reed City, MI  49677

Newkirk Electric, Inc.
1875 Roberts Street No Bid

Muskegon, MI  49442
CC Power

3850 Beebe Road 5% $94,773.50 $80,000.00 $174,773.50
Kalkaska, MI 49646
SKF Contracting

10495 Deal Rd No Bid
Williamsburg, MI 49690

This is to certify that at 2:00p.m., local time on Monday, March 18, 2013, the bids tabulated herein were publicly opened and read.

GRP Engineering, Inc.

By:
Robert A. Shelley, P.E.

 13-0582.01 Bid #2013-06 Bid Tab 3/19/2013

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 23 of 46



    
Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

  

660 Cascade W Parkway SE  Suite 65  325 E Lake Street  Suite 26 
Grand Rapids MI  49546  Petoskey MI  49770 
P:  616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P:  231.439.9683 
F:  616.285.6448  F:  231.439.9698 

March 19, 2013 
13-0582.01  

Mr. Roger Huff 
City of South Haven 
1199 8th Ave. 
South Haven, MI 49090  

RE: Meijer Electrical Service Installation  
Bid Recommendation  

Dear Roger:  

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed reviewing the bids submitted on March 18, 2013 for the 
Meijer Store Electrical Service Installation project.  Three of the five contractors solicited for 
bids replied to the bid request.  Kent Power Inc. submitted a bid for the project in the total 
amount of $73,695.37.    

Kent Power has a history of successfully completing similar projects for South Haven and other 
municipal clients.  Therefore GRP Engineering, Inc. sees no reason not to accept Kent Power’s 
bid for the above mentioned project.  

Kent Power took no exception to the bid documents.  A complete bid tabulation is attached to 
this letter.  

Please contact me at 616.942.7183 should you have any questions regarding this evaluation.  

Sincerely, 
GRP Engineering, Inc.    

Robert A. Shelley, P.E. 
Electrical Engineer 

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 24 of 46

http://www.grp-engineering.com


0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

Fund 582 ‐ ELECTRIC FUND

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 000‐REVEUNES
582‐000‐543‐000 MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE FEES 17,278 17,200 0 17,200 17,200 0 0
582‐000‐646‐001 ELECTRIC FEES‐RESIDENTIAL CITY 2,504,376 2,900,000 2,520,076 2,900,000 2,914,500 14,500 1
582‐000‐646‐002 ELECTRIC FEES‐RESIDENTIAL RURL 2,760,260 2,700,000 2,154,151 2,700,000 2,713,500 13,500 1
582‐000‐646‐003 ELECTRIC FEES‐COMMERCIAL CITY 1,810,255 2,200,000 1,958,080 2,200,000 2,211,000 11,000 1
582‐000‐646‐004 ELECTRIC FEES‐COMM POWER CITY 2,855,351 2,800,000 1,670,276 2,800,000 2,814,000 14,000 1
582‐000‐646‐005 ELECTRIC FEES ‐ COMM RURAL 676,980 950,000 781,481 950,000 954,750 4,750 1
582‐000‐646‐006 ELECTRIC FEES‐COMM POWER RURAL 966,416 730,000 587,695 730,000 733,650 3,650 1
582‐000‐646‐007 ELECTRIC FEES‐INDUSTRIAL CITY 1,359,016 750,000 597,630 750,000 753,750 3,750 1
582‐000‐646‐008 ELECTRIC FEES‐INDUSTRIAL RURAL 266,183 190,000 155,389 190,000 190,950 950 1 66,100
582‐000‐646‐010 STREET LIGHTING ‐ CITY 98,072 92,000 74,178 92,000 95,000 3,000 3
582‐000‐646‐011 STREET LIGHTING ‐ RURAL 30,390 28,000 23,531 28,000 30,000 2,000 7
582‐000‐646‐012 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION‐RESIDENTIA 37,825 43,476 39,423 43,476 63,347 19,871 46
582‐000‐646‐013 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION‐COMMERCIAL 27,606 30,000 33,565 30,000 46,232 16,232 54
582‐000‐646‐014 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION‐COMM POWER 49,296 48,000 20,967 48,000 82,557 34,557 72
582‐000‐646‐015 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION‐INDUSTRIAL 41,479 34,000 20,926 34,000 69,466 35,466 104
582‐000‐658‐000 PENALITIES ‐ UTILITY BILLS 136,655 116,000 96,308 116,000 130,000 14,000 12
582‐000‐665‐000 INTEREST INCOME 64,873 30,000 11,147 30,000 30,000 0 0
582‐000‐665‐001 INT. INCOME ‐ SPECIAL ASSESS 2,602 2,602 0 2,602 2,602 0 0
582‐000‐665‐582 MARKET VALUE ADJUSTMENTS (17,703) 0 (781) 0 0 0 0
582‐000‐672‐001 SPECIAL ASSESS.‐ BOAT YD BASIN 0 0 733 0 0 0 0
582‐000‐675‐000 CONTRIBUTION TO AID CONSTR 181,140 250,000 242,687 250,000 100,000 (150,000) (60)
582‐000‐678‐000 PAYROLL REIMBURSEMENTS 6,085 0 0 0 0 0 0
582‐000‐680‐000 MISCELLANEOUS OPER INCOME 26,245 30,000 29,019 30,000 25,000 (5,000) (17)
Totals for dept 000‐REVEUNES 13,900,680 13,941,278 11,016,481 13,941,278 13,977,504 36,226 0

    TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 13,900,680 13,941,278 11,016,481 13,941,278 13,977,504 36,226 0

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 557‐PURCHASED POWER
582‐557‐730‐000 PURCHASED POWER 9,086,858 9,555,000 5,784,028 9,555,000 9,600,000 45,000 0
Totals for dept 557‐PURCHASED POWER 9,086,858 9,555,000 5,784,028 9,555,000 9,600,000 45,000 0

Dept 558‐OPERATIONS
582‐558‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 615,906 583,303 415,155 583,303 606,311 23,008 4
582‐558‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 29,009 28,900 21,632 28,900 26,905 (1,995) (7)
582‐558‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 83,472 70,100 48,716 70,100 67,036 (3,064) (4)
582‐558‐709‐000 OVERTIME ‐ PART‐TIME 15 0 61 0 0 0 0
582‐558‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 142,093 150,500 115,357 150,500 142,894 (7,606) (5)
582‐558‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 5,434 5,434 3,623 5,434 5,434 0 0
582‐558‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 8,818 15,564 7,923 15,564 12,612 (2,952) (19)
582‐558‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 55,547 49,500 36,490 49,500 53,569 4,069 8
582‐558‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 6,451 9,000 6,777 9,000 7,158 (1,842) (20)
582‐558‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 5,401 5,683 2,985 5,683 4,271 (1,412) (25)
582‐558‐714‐009 LONGEVITY 1,319 0 0 0 0 0 0
582‐558‐714‐010 CAR ALLOWANCE 2,400 2,400 1,600 2,400 2,400 0 0
582‐558‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 7,384 19,500 14,094 19,500 24,053 4,553 23
582‐558‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 10,747 10,600 6,314 10,600 10,600 0 0
582‐558‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 13,710 10,000 5,548 10,000 10,000 0 0
582‐558‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 31,292 23,000 9,619 23,000 23,000 0 0
582‐558‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 3,228 7,000 924 7,000 7,000 0 0
582‐558‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 22,151 25,000 18,056 25,000 25,000 0 0
582‐558‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 16,559 50,000 23,704 50,000 50,000 0 0
582‐558‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 122,722 265,000 156,368 265,000 265,000 0 0
582‐558‐820‐000 BAD DEBT EXPENSE 990 3,000 307 3,000 3,000 0 0
582‐558‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 8,628 10,600 5,853 10,600 10,600 0 0
582‐558‐855‐000 POSTAGE 38,275 45,900 25,209 45,900 45,900 0 0
582‐558‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 14,234 10,200 4,784 10,200 10,200 0 0

ELECTRIC FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               

                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 25 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

ELECTRIC FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               

                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

582‐558‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 327 1,500 148 1,500 1,500 0 0
582‐558‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 18,292 20,000 15,162 20,000 20,000 0 0
582‐558‐922‐000 UTILITIES ‐ WATER & SEWER 2,713 2,500 1,864 2,500 2,500 0 0
582‐558‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 8,637 15,500 5,548 15,500 15,500 0 0
582‐558‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRCTRS 0 6,000 5,647 6,000 0 (6,000) (100)
582‐558‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIPM 117,449 110,000 47,350 110,000 110,000 0 0
582‐558‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 129,854 135,649 101,737 135,649 144,482 8,833 7
582‐558‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 3,020 3,382 2,265 3,382 3,573 191 6
582‐558‐943‐000 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 184 100 90 100 100 0 0
582‐558‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 21,846 23,460 14,047 23,460 23,460 0 0
582‐558‐965‐000 ELECTRIC REBATES 21,595 25,000 4,776 25,000 25,000 0 0
582‐558‐968‐000 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 506,199 486,000 0 486,000 540,000 54,000 11
582‐558‐975‐000 BUILDINGS/ADDITIONS/IMPROVE 0 160,000 0 160,000 980,000 820,000 513
582‐558‐980‐000 OFFICE EQUIPMENT & FURNITURE 0 26,000 24,888 26,000 8,000 (18,000) (69)
582‐558‐988‐000 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM CONSTR 165,853 0 85,126 0 0 0 0
582‐558‐988‐001 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM EQUIPMENT 1,705 13,000 0 13,000 0 (13,000) (100)
Totals for dept 558‐OPERATIONS 2,243,459 2,428,275 1,239,747 2,428,275 3,287,058 858,783 35

Dept 561‐ADMINISTRATION
582‐561‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 222,280 232,221 164,004 232,221 240,444 8,223 4
582‐561‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 64,096 77,001 47,016 77,001 78,538 1,537 2
582‐561‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 165 682 173 682 682 0 0
582‐561‐709‐000 OVERTIME ‐ PART‐TIME 301 384 357 384 384 0 0
582‐561‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 47,542 47,488 35,163 47,488 52,874 5,386 11
582‐561‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 8,276 8,276 5,373 8,276 9,425 1,149 14
582‐561‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 661 3,416 593 3,416 2,779 (637) (19)
582‐561‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 21,974 23,839 16,114 23,839 24,483 644 3
582‐561‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 3,646 2,686 3,732 2,686 3,379 693 26
582‐561‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 3,084 3,131 1,558 3,131 2,305 (826) (26)
582‐561‐714‐010 CAR ALLOWANCE 3,312 3,312 2,208 3,312 3,312 0 0
582‐561‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 2,134 3,400 2,032 3,400 5,800 2,400 71
582‐561‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 271 0 0 0 500 500 0
582‐561‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 19,795 20,000 14,553 20,000 20,000 0 0
582‐561‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 2,282 2,500 1,818 2,500 2,500 0 0
582‐561‐802‐001 ENERGY OPTIMIZATION SERVICES 213,057 260,854 176,363 260,854 261,602 748 0
582‐561‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 2,243 0 1,003 0 2,000 2,000 0
582‐561‐870‐000 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 627,748 657,849 493,387 657,849 657,849 0 0
582‐561‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 300 0 300 300 0 0
582‐561‐911‐000 PROPERTY/FLEET/LIABILITY INS 62,720 65,000 56,989 65,000 68,250 3,250 5
582‐561‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 417 424 318 424 424 0 0
582‐561‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 56,245 62,994 42,184 62,994 65,896 2,902 5
582‐561‐969‐101 ADMIN FEES ‐ GENERAL FUND 138,573 138,573 103,930 138,573 138,573 0 0
Totals for dept 561‐ADMINISTRATION 1,500,822 1,614,330 1,168,868 1,614,330 1,642,299 27,969 2

Dept 562‐ELECTRIC SYSTEM UPGRADE
582‐562‐988‐002 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM UPGRADE 0 125,000 0 125,000 540,000 415,000 332
Totals for dept 562‐ELECTRIC SYSTEM UPGRADE 0 125,000 0 125,000 540,000 415,000 332

Dept 965‐OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
582‐965‐999‐370 OPER TRANS OUT‐BLDG AUTH #2 167,456 167,018 130,000 167,018 170,999 3,981 2
582‐965‐999‐661 OPER TRANS OUT ‐ MOTOR POOL 0 0 0 0 6,000 6,000 0
Totals for dept 965‐OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 167,456 167,018 130,000 167,018 176,999 9,981 6

    TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 12,998,595 13,889,623 8,322,643 13,889,623 15,246,356 1,356,733 10

    NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐ FUND 582 902,085 51,655 2,693,838 51,655 (1,268,852) (1,320,507) (2,556)
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 15,386,695 16,288,783 16,288,780 16,288,783 16,340,438 51,655 0
    ENDING FUND BALANCE 16,288,783 16,340,438 18,982,618 16,340,438 15,071,586 (1,268,852) (8)

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 26 of 46



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
PROPOSED ELECTRIC RATES

FOR FY 2014

ELECTRIC RATES

Current Proposed
0.50% DIFFERENCE

Residential 
      Base rate 5.50 5.53 0.03$                 
      Usage rate per kwh 0.100 0.101 0.0005$             
Commercial
      Base rate 6.80 6.83 0.03$                 
      Usage rate per kwh 0.115 0.116 0.0006$             
Commercial Power
      Usage rate per kwh 0.0563 0.057 0.0003$             
      Demand Charge per kw 11.95 12.010 0.0597$             
        (Min. 15 kw/mo)
Industrial & Municipal
      Usage rate per kwh‐1st 200 kwh 0.0533 0.0536 0.0003$             
      Usage rate per kwh‐excess kwh 0.0468 0.0470 0.0002$             
      Demand Charge per kw 11.95 12.010 0.0597$             
        (Min. 15 kw/mo)

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 27 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

Fund 591 ‐ WATER FUND

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 000‐REVEUNES
591‐000‐631‐000 CONNECTION FEES 6,600 5,610 8,400 5,610 9,000 3,390 60
591‐000‐631‐001 AVAILABILITY FEE‐PLANT 157,000 81,600 66,246 81,600 81,600 0 0
591‐000‐631‐002 AVAILABILITY FEE‐ WATER SYSTEM 38,938 12,240 6,713 12,240 12,240 0 0
591‐000‐642‐002 CASCO ‐ USAGE 94,996 120,000 97,295 120,000 120,600 600 1
591‐000‐642‐003 WATER FEES ‐ CITY 687,659 750,000 601,236 750,000 778,875 28,875 4
591‐000‐642‐005 CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FEES 53,332 76,650 55,867 76,650 77,385 735 1
591‐000‐642‐006 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEES 112,296 162,000 114,204 162,000 165,825 3,825 2
591‐000‐642‐007 CITY ‐ PLANT REPLACEMENT 601,789 766,878 537,747 766,878 773,850 6,972 1
591‐000‐642‐008 CITY ‐ RTS 229,409 270,000 196,482 270,000 271,350 1,350 1
591‐000‐642‐009 CASCO ‐ RTS 36,742 43,200 32,443 43,200 45,225 2,025 5
591‐000‐642‐010 CASCO ‐ PLANT REPLACEMENT 96,158 122,388 94,452 122,388 125,625 3,237 3
591‐000‐642‐011 CASCO ‐ CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 8,470 12,300 9,232 12,300 12,563 263 2
591‐000‐642‐012 SH TWSP ‐ USAGE 198,620 211,184 163,597 211,184 221,100 9,916 5
591‐000‐642‐013 SH TWSP ‐ RTS 70,127 82,800 55,151 82,800 85,425 2,625 3
591‐000‐642‐014 SH TWSP ‐ PLANT REPLACEMENT 183,571 232,016 170,413 232,016 241,200 9,184 4
591‐000‐642‐015 SH TWSP ‐ CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 16,174 23,550 15,744 23,550 25,125 1,575 7
591‐000‐642‐016 COVERT ‐ USAGE 132,271 150,000 117,039 150,000 150,750 750 1
591‐000‐642‐017 COVERT ‐ RTS 56,770 65,000 49,093 65,000 65,325 325 1
591‐000‐642‐018 COVERT ‐ CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 13,085 19,050 13,962 19,050 20,100 1,050 6
591‐000‐642‐019 COVERT ‐ PLANT REPLACEMENT 148,505 187,488 138,925 187,488 190,950 3,462 2 76,769
591‐000‐643‐000 MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE REV 0 0 2,840 0 3,000 3,000 0
591‐000‐646‐009 OTHER SALES/PUBLIC 10,176 10,250 6,784 10,250 10,250 0 0
591‐000‐658‐000 PENALITIES ‐ UTILITY BILLS 34,852 35,000 24,790 35,000 35,000 0 0
591‐000‐665‐000 INTEREST INCOME 2,077 2,500 723 2,500 2,000 (500) (20)
591‐000‐665‐001 INTEREST INCOME‐SPECIAL ASSESS 14,301 13,844 2,329 13,844 13,000 (844) (6)
591‐000‐665‐888 SPEC ASSESS INT ‐ CONTRACTS 0 0 439 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐667‐000 RENTAL INCOME 2,502 2,502 1,877 2,502 2,502 0 0
591‐000‐672‐001 SPECIAL ASSESS‐MONROE PARK 0 0 1,334 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐672‐002 SPECIAL ASSESS‐PHOENIX ST 0 0 558 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐672‐003 SPECIAL ASSESS‐ST JOSEPH 0 0 13,342 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐672‐005 SPECIAL ASSESS‐QUAKER ST 0 0 1,175 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐672‐009 SPECIAL ASSESS‐PARK AVE 6,300 0 0 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐672‐012 SPEC ASSESS REV‐KAZOO ST P1 0 0 4,395 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐672‐888 SPEC ASSESS ‐ CONTRACTS 0 0 980 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐674‐000 S HAVEN/CASCO W/S AUTH ADM FEE 7,541 7,600 3,790 7,600 7,600 0 0
591‐000‐675‐000 CONTRIBUTION TO AID CONSTR 58,511 1,000 7,386 1,000 10,000 9,000 900
591‐000‐676‐001 COVERT TWSP LINE REIMBURSEMENT 7,019 22,000 0 22,000 15,000 (7,000) (32)
591‐000‐676‐007 COVERT PLANT REIMBURSEMENT 55,699 48,000 39,784 48,000 50,000 2,000 4
591‐000‐678‐000 PAYROLL REIMBURSEMENTS 3,522 0 0 0 0 0 0
591‐000‐680‐000 MISCELLANEOUS OPERATING INCOME 35,087 30,000 32,061 30,000 35,000 5,000 17
591‐000‐699‐496 TRANSFER FROM WTR PLANT CONST 804,770 0 0 0 0 0 0
Totals for dept 000‐REVEUNES 3,984,869 3,566,650 2,688,828 3,566,650 3,657,465 90,815 3

    TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 3,984,869 3,566,650 2,688,828 3,566,650 3,657,465 90,815 3

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 558‐OPERATIONS
591‐558‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 144,308 153,914 91,705 153,914 160,443 6,529 4
591‐558‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 82 4,740 195 4,740 5,190 450 9
591‐558‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 10,859 18,593 7,453 18,593 18,593 0 0
591‐558‐709‐000 OVERTIME ‐ PART‐TIME 0 167 31 167 167 0 0
591‐558‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 37,076 35,333 25,889 35,333 53,204 17,871 51
591‐558‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 2,300 3,407 900 3,407 3,407 0 0
591‐558‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 1,893 5,642 2,865 5,642 4,249 (1,393) (25)
591‐558‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 11,429 12,137 7,330 12,137 141,006 128,869 1,062
591‐558‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 1,078 1,909 1,446 1,909 2,406 497 26
591‐558‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 1,427 1,578 887 1,578 1,141 (437) (28)

WATER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               

                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 28 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

WATER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               

                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

591‐558‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 1,810 5,200 3,688 5,200 6,813 1,613 31
591‐558‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,631 1,500 1,507 1,500 1,500 0 0
591‐558‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 1,065 1,568 1,499 1,568 1,568 0 0
591‐558‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 59,658 50,000 32,354 50,000 50,000 0 0
591‐558‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 323 1,000 1,091 1,000 1,000 0 0
591‐558‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 7,191 10,000 6,128 10,000 10,000 0 0
591‐558‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 213 12,000 2,938 12,000 12,000 0 0
591‐558‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 48,121 255,000 169,813 30,000 30,000 (225,000) (88)
591‐558‐820‐000 BAD DEBT EXPENSE 459 3,000 2,159 3,000 1,000 (2,000) (67)
591‐558‐820‐001 BAD DEBT EXP ‐ COVERT TWP 60 0 0 0 0 0 0
591‐558‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 2,561 2,634 1,800 2,634 2,634 0 0
591‐558‐855‐000 POSTAGE 5,420 5,000 3,892 5,000 5,000 0 0
591‐558‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 1,629 2,000 1,097 2,000 2,000 0 0
591‐558‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 209 125 0 125 125 0 0
591‐558‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 664 1,129 440 1,129 1,129 0 0
591‐558‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRCTRE 0 3,000 2,759 3,000 0 (3,000) (100)
591‐558‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIPM 11,040 2,000 95 2,000 2,000 0 0
591‐558‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 18,153 18,531 13,898 18,531 18,113 (418) (2)
591‐558‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 848 950 636 950 1,015 65 7
591‐558‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 1,198 1,300 1,320 1,300 2,100 800 62
591‐558‐968‐000 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 377,036 575,000 0 575,000 575,000 0 0
591‐558‐972‐000 WATER SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION 0 0 108 0 272,000 272,000 0
591‐558‐975‐000 BUILDINGS/ADDITIONS IMPROVE 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 0
591‐558‐980‐000 OFFICE EQUIPMENT & FURNITURE 0 26,000 24,886 26,000 8,000 (18,000) (69)
Totals for dept 558‐OPERATIONS 749,741 1,214,357 410,809 989,357 1,442,803 228,446 19

Dept 559‐TREATMENT
591‐559‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 119,250 114,000 85,271 114,000 110,807 (3,193) (3)
591‐559‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 26,997 28,241 15,548 28,241 28,241 0 0
591‐559‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 29,975 36,000 27,230 36,000 33,118 (2,882) (8)
591‐559‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 2,655 3,709 590 3,709 3,709 0 0
591‐559‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,661 4,315 2,191 4,315 3,540 (775) (18)
591‐559‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 10,914 9,900 7,380 9,900 10,637 737 7
591‐559‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 1,488 2,100 1,432 2,100 1,357 (743) (35)
591‐559‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 1,219 890 662 890 897 7 1
591‐559‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 2,225 6,300 4,488 6,300 3,743 (2,557) (41)
591‐559‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 336 500 332 500 625 125 25
591‐559‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 216 500 127 500 500 0 0
591‐559‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 44,877 70,000 22,936 70,000 70,000 0 0
591‐559‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 230 500 88 500 500 0 0
591‐559‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 675 860 569 860 950 90 10
591‐559‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING FEES 1,964 4,000 0 4,000 14,375 10,375 259
591‐559‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 29,633 40,000 24,905 40,000 48,125 8,125 20
591‐559‐803‐000 LICENSE & FEES 2,768 4,077 3,884 4,077 4,077 0 0
591‐559‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 4,538 4,000 3,371 4,000 4,000 0 0
591‐559‐855‐000 POSTAGE 71 93 136 93 93 0 0
591‐559‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 1,709 1,200 1,060 1,200 1,200 0 0
591‐559‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 2,000 110 2,000 2,000 0 0
591‐559‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 71,689 70,000 53,482 70,000 70,000 0 0
591‐559‐921‐001 UTILITIES‐COVERT PLANT 47,984 55,000 35,586 55,000 55,000 0 0
591‐559‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 12,986 14,114 8,080 14,114 14,114 0 0
591‐559‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRCTR 242 1,568 188 1,568 1,568 0 0
591‐559‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIPM 5,827 10,000 6,349 10,000 16,250 6,250 63
591‐559‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 864 880 660 880 879 (1) (0)
591‐559‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 697 781 523 781 817 36 5
591‐559‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 778 1,100 302 1,100 1,100 0 0
591‐559‐977‐000 EQUIPMENT ‐ SHOP 0 0 4,399 0 0 0 0
Totals for dept 559‐TREATMENT 425,468 486,628 311,879 486,628 502,222 15,594 3

Dept 561‐ADMINISTRATION
591‐561‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 78,699 81,915 57,874 81,915 85,611 3,696 5
591‐561‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 6,145 6,994 4,577 6,994 7,133 139 2
591‐561‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 1,954 1,500 1,318 1,500 1,500 0 0

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 29 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

WATER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               

                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

591‐561‐709‐000 OVERTIME ‐ PART‐TIME 64 90 69 90 92 2 2
591‐561‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 18,024 17,947 13,243 17,947 20,167 2,220 12
591‐561‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 2,657 2,589 1,695 2,589 2,836 247 10
591‐561‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 266 371 187 371 301 (70) (19)
591‐561‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 6,757 7,112 4,916 7,112 7,217 105 1
591‐561‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 983 777 1,053 777 986 209 27
591‐561‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 1,153 1,143 569 1,143 833 (310) (27)
591‐561‐714‐010 CAR ALLOWANCE 2,804 2,558 1,706 2,558 2,622 64 3
591‐561‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 989 1,221 812 1,221 2,003 782 64
591‐561‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 121 0 0 0 0 0 0
591‐561‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 5,138 5,000 3,181 5,000 5,000 0 0
591‐561‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 483 500 375 500 500 0 0
591‐561‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 629 0 239 0 500 500 0
591‐561‐870‐000 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 85,238 85,238 63,928 85,238 85,238 0 0
591‐561‐911‐000 PROPERTY/FLEET/LIABILITY INS 36,112 33,000 32,812 33,000 38,325 5,325 16
591‐561‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 1,262 1,362 1,022 1,362 1,360 (2) (0)
591‐561‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 11,117 12,451 8,338 12,451 13,024 573 5
591‐561‐969‐101 ADMIN FEES ‐ GENERAL FUND 30,701 30,701 23,026 30,701 30,701 0 0
Totals for dept 561‐ADMINISTRATION 291,296 292,469 220,940 292,469 305,949 13,480 5

Dept 563‐OPERATIONS ‐  CASCO TOWNSHIP
591‐563‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 10,823 12,000 10,729 12,000 8,846 (3,154) (26)
591‐563‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 0 500 0 500 500 0 0
591‐563‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 435 890 592 890 500 (390) (44)
591‐563‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 1,417 3,300 2,461 3,300 2,936 (364) (11)
591‐563‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 0 188 0 188 188 0 0
591‐563‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 197 302 153 302 226 (76) (25)
591‐563‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 839 1,200 828 1,200 753 (447) (37)
591‐563‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 80 200 139 200 133 (67) (34)
591‐563‐713‐002 LIFE AND DISABILITY 84 87 65 87 63 (24) (28)
591‐563‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 84 58 84 376 292 348
591‐563‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 322 308 250 308 308 0 0
591‐563‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 183 308 295 308 308 0 0
591‐563‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 11,294 7,380 6,063 7,380 7,380 0 0
591‐563‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 605 123 287 123 200 77 63
591‐563‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 1,440 1,476 982 1,476 1,476 0 0
591‐563‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 43 0 584 0 250 250 0
591‐563‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 10,974 11,070 6,190 11,070 11,070 0 0
591‐563‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 513 517 318 517 517 0 0
591‐563‐855‐000 POSTAGE 926 1,230 481 1,230 1,230 0 0
591‐563‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 326 271 220 271 271 0 0
591‐563‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 42 25 0 25 25 0 0
591‐563‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 133 221 81 221 221 0 0
591‐563‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 1,737 2,000 572 2,000 2,000 0 0
591‐563‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 8,721 8,901 6,676 8,901 8,700 (201) (2)
591‐563‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 170 190 127 190 200 10 5
591‐563‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 240 400 264 400 258 (142) (36)
Totals for dept 563‐OPERATIONS ‐  CASCO TOWNSHIP 51,544 53,171 38,415 53,171 48,935 (4,236) (8)

Dept 564‐OPERATIONS S H TOWNSHIP
591‐564‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 14,708 15,630 11,149 15,630 16,294 664 4
591‐564‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 0 400 0 400 400 0 0
591‐564‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 988 2,116 59 2,116 2,116 0 0
591‐564‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 2,370 3,591 2,240 3,591 5,407 1,816 51
591‐564‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 0 346 0 346 355 9 3
591‐564‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 366 577 293 577 434 (143) (25)
591‐564‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 1,164 1,226 825 1,226 1,439 213 17
591‐564‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 116 194 132 194 245 51 26
591‐564‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 117 160 63 160 116 (44) (28)
591‐564‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 155 45 155 692 537 346
591‐564‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 484 465 376 465 465 0 0
591‐564‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 275 465 443 465 465 0 0
591‐564‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 16,941 11,160 9,094 11,160 11,160 0 0

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 30 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

WATER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               

                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

591‐564‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 186 431 186 186 0 0
591‐564‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 2,161 2,232 1,473 2,232 2,232 0 0
591‐564‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 64 0 876 0 500 500 0
591‐564‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 15,083 10,000 4,489 10,000 10,000 0 0
591‐564‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 770 781 477 781 781 0 0
591‐564‐855‐000 POSTAGE 1,390 1,860 721 1,860 1,860 0 0
591‐564‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 490 409 330 409 409 0 0
591‐564‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 63 37 0 37 37 0 0
591‐564‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 200 335 122 335 335 0 0
591‐564‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 2,606 2,500 858 2,500 2,500 0 0
591‐564‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 6,005 6,136 4,602 6,136 5,999 (137) (2)
591‐564‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 256 287 192 287 297 10 3
591‐564‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 360 391 397 391 391 0 0
Totals for dept 564‐OPERATIONS S H TOWNSHIP 66,977 61,639 39,687 61,639 65,115 3,476 6

Dept 565‐OPERATIONS ‐ COVERT
591‐565‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 18,332 23,321 11,027 23,321 24,311 990 4
591‐565‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 0 1,500 0 1,500 1,500 0 0
591‐565‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 2,840 3,334 1,562 3,334 3,334 0 0
591‐565‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 3,772 3,358 2,777 3,358 8,068 4,710 140
591‐565‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 0 517 0 517 530 13 3
591‐565‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 528 895 455 895 674 (221) (25)
591‐565‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 1,567 1,899 924 1,899 2,230 331 17
591‐565‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 334 289 164 289 365 76 26
591‐565‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 177 239 74 239 173 (66) (28)
591‐565‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 231 67 231 1,033 802 347
591‐565‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 202 190 157 190 190 0 0
591‐565‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 115 190 185 190 190 0 0
591‐565‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 7,059 4,560 3,789 4,560 4,560 0 0
591‐565‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 76 180 76 76 0 0
591‐565‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 900 912 614 912 912 0 0
591‐565‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 27 0 365 0 500 500 0
591‐565‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 15,864 7,000 5,246 7,000 7,000 0 0
591‐565‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 321 319 199 319 319 0 0
591‐565‐855‐000 POSTAGE 579 760 300 760 760 0 0
591‐565‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 204 167 137 167 167 0 0
591‐565‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 26 15 0 15 15 0 0
591‐565‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 83 137 (53) 137 137 0 0
591‐565‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 1,086 1,500 1,887 1,500 1,500 0 0
591‐565‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 19,238 19,646 14,734 19,646 19,201 (445) (2)
591‐565‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 105 118 79 118 123 5 4
591‐565‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 150 160 165 160 160 0 0
Totals for dept 565‐OPERATIONS ‐ COVERT 73,509 71,333 45,034 71,333 78,028 6,695 9

Dept 566‐TREATMENT ‐ CASCO TWP
591‐566‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 11,964 16,138 8,753 16,138 16,718 580 4
591‐566‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 2,784 2,337 1,602 2,337 2,337 0 0
591‐566‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 2,832 4,692 2,539 4,692 5,192 500 11
591‐566‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 270 453 60 453 453 0 0
591‐566‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 268 588 298 588 485 (103) (18)
591‐566‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 1,122 1,235 758 1,235 1,458 223 18
591‐566‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 153 201 147 201 207 6 3
591‐566‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 125 205 68 205 124 (81) (40)
591‐566‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 178 57 178 641 463 260
591‐566‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 65 49 60 49 86 37 76
591‐566‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 43 123 25 123 123 0 0
591‐566‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 8,916 8,610 4,400 8,610 8,610 0 0
591‐566‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 37 18 37 37 0 0
591‐566‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 135 92 103 92 130 38 41
591‐566‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 486 500 0 500 2,000 1,500 300
591‐566‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 5,377 5,000 3,972 5,000 6,120 1,120 22
591‐566‐803‐000 LICENSE & FEES 0 800 118 800 800 0 0
591‐566‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 909 800 580 800 800 0 0

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 31 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

WATER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               

                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

591‐566‐855‐000 POSTAGE 14 18 14 18 18 0 0
591‐566‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 342 492 214 492 492 0 0
591‐566‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 31 22 31 31 0 0
591‐566‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 14,361 15,990 8,531 15,990 15,990 0 0
591‐566‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 2,601 2,000 1,547 2,000 2,000 0 0
591‐566‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 48 308 38 308 308 0 0
591‐566‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 1,167 615 1,269 615 1,500 885 144
591‐566‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 159 162 122 162 162 0 0
591‐566‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 139 156 104 156 162 6 4
591‐566‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 156 49 60 49 49 0 0
Totals for dept 566‐TREATMENT ‐ CASCO TWP 54,436 61,859 35,479 61,859 67,033 5,174 8

Dept 567‐TREATMENT ‐ SH TWP
591‐567‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 31,530 41,935 23,093 41,935 43,447 1,512 4
591‐567‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 7,307 6,111 4,209 6,111 6,111 0 0
591‐567‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 7,443 12,052 6,694 12,052 13,506 1,454 12
591‐567‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 720 1,105 160 1,105 1,105 0 0
591‐567‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 751 1,528 776 1,528 1,262 (266) (17)
591‐567‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 2,955 3,208 1,998 3,208 3,791 583 18
591‐567‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 403 510 388 510 537 27 5
591‐567‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 330 518 179 518 320 (198) (38)
591‐567‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 461 150 461 1,672 1,211 263
591‐567‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 97 74 90 74 160 86 116
591‐567‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 65 186 38 186 186 0 0
591‐567‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 13,373 13,020 6,600 13,020 13,020 0 0
591‐567‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 56 26 56 56 0 0
591‐567‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 203 140 154 140 240 100 71
591‐567‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 730 1,000 0 1,000 3,680 2,680 268
591‐567‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 8,073 4,500 5,959 4,500 6,580 2,080 46
591‐567‐803‐000 LICENSE & FEES 0 1,209 215 1,209 1,209 0 0
591‐567‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 1,248 818 870 818 818 0 0
591‐567‐855‐000 POSTAGE 137 28 21 28 28 0 0
591‐567‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 514 744 326 744 744 0 0
591‐567‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 47 33 47 47 0 0
591‐567‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 21,973 21,000 13,127 21,000 21,000 0 0
591‐567‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 3,902 3,500 2,229 3,500 3,500 0 0
591‐567‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 73 465 57 465 465 0 0
591‐567‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 1,751 930 1,904 930 2,530 1,600 172
591‐567‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 291 296 222 296 296 0 0
591‐567‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 211 236 158 236 247 11 5
591‐567‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 234 74 91 74 74 0 0
Totals for dept 567‐TREATMENT ‐ SH TWP 104,314 115,751 69,767 115,751 126,631 10,880 9

Dept 568‐TREATMENT ‐ COVERT
591‐568‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 37,768 38,821 27,639 38,821 40,272 1,451 4
591‐568‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 8,779 7,360 5,052 7,360 7,360 0 0
591‐568‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 8,933 11,755 8,015 11,755 12,654 899 8
591‐568‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 855 733 190 733 751 18 2
591‐568‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 752 1,469 706 1,469 1,213 (256) (17)
591‐568‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 3,541 2,970 2,393 2,970 3,644 674 23
591‐568‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 482 459 465 459 499 40 9
591‐568‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 395 454 214 454 289 (165) (36)
591‐568‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 413 180 413 1,603 1,190 288
591‐568‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 40 30 38 30 129 99 330
591‐568‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 27 76 16 76 76 0 0
591‐568‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 5,572 5,320 2,750 5,320 5,320 0 0
591‐568‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 23 11 23 23 0 0
591‐568‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 85 57 64 57 200 143 251
591‐568‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 303 750 0 750 2,970 2,220 296
591‐568‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 3,913 2,000 2,483 2,000 3,677 1,677 84
591‐568‐803‐000 LICENSE & FEES 0 494 143 494 494 0 0
591‐568‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 520 334 362 334 334 0 0
591‐568‐855‐000 POSTAGE 57 11 9 11 11 0 0

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 32 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

WATER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               

                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

591‐568‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 214 304 143 304 304 0 0
591‐568‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 19 14 19 19 0 0
591‐568‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 17,179 16,000 11,596 16,000 16,000 0 0
591‐568‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 1,626 1,710 929 1,710 1,710 0 0
591‐568‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 30 190 24 190 190 0 0
591‐568‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 730 380 793 380 1,670 1,290 339
591‐568‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 778 792 594 792 792 0 0
591‐568‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 86 96 64 96 101 5 5
591‐568‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 97 100 38 100 100 0 0
Totals for dept 568‐TREATMENT ‐ COVERT 92,762 93,120 64,925 93,120 102,405 9,285 10

Dept 905‐DEBT SERVICE
591‐905‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 0 1,000 796 1,000 1,000 0 0
591‐905‐991‐000 DEBT SERVICE ‐ PRINCIPAL 0 25,000 0 25,000 25,000 0 0
591‐905‐991‐591 DEBT SERVICE ‐ PRINCIPAL WFP 0 420,000 225,000 420,000 480,000 60,000 14
591‐905‐995‐000 DEBT SERVICE ‐ INTEREST 14,043 14,338 7,031 14,338 13,125 (1,213) (8)
591‐905‐995‐002 AMORTIZATION EXPENSE 26,353 26,353 0 26,353 26,353 0 0
591‐905‐995‐591 DEBT SERVICE ‐ INTEREST WFP 0 920,975 462,085 920,975 906,158 (14,817) (2)
Totals for dept 905‐DEBT SERVICE 40,396 1,407,666 694,912 1,407,666 1,451,636 43,970 3

Dept 965‐OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
591‐965‐999‐250 OPER TRANSFER OUT‐DDA 1,816 3,000 320 3,000 1,162 (1,838) (61)
591‐965‐999‐372 OPER TRANS ‐ WTR PLANT DEBT 1,252,608 0 0 0 0 0 0
591‐965‐999‐467 OPER TRANS OUT‐SEWER REHAB 43,066 32,000 6,261 32,000 30,722 (1,278) (4)
591‐965‐999‐661 OPER TRANS OUT ‐ MOTOR POOL 0 0 0 0 2,000 2,000 0
Totals for dept 965‐OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 1,297,490 35,000 6,581 35,000 33,884 (1,116) (3)

    TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 3,247,933 3,892,993 1,938,428 3,667,993 4,224,641 331,648 9

    NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐ FUND 591 736,936 (326,343) 750,400 (101,343) (567,176) (240,833) 74
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 25,223,834 6,485,776 25,960,770 6,485,776 6,747,370 (101,343) (2)
    FUND BALANCE ADJUSTMENTS (19,474,994) 362,937 362,937 362,937 0 74
    ENDING FUND BALANCE 6,485,776 6,522,370 27,074,107 6,747,370 6,180,194 (342,176) (6)

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 33 of 46



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
PROPOSED WATER RATES

FOR FY 2014

WATER STANDBY RATES

Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed

Meter Size Plant Repl Plant Repl Capital Imp Capital Imp Capital Repl Capital Repl R T S  R T S  0.50% DIFFERENCE
(Inches) Total Total

1.005 1.005 1.005 1.005

5/8" - 3/4" 18.70 18.79 3.96 3.98 1.88 1.89 6.62 6.65 31.16 31.31 0.16                            
1" 24.96 25.08 5.28 5.31 2.52 2.53 8.82 8.86 41.58 41.79 0.21                            
1 1/4" 35.70 35.88 7.55 7.58 3.57 3.59 12.62 12.69 59.44 59.74 0.30                            
1 1/2" 46.48 46.71 9.83 9.87 4.67 4.69 16.42 16.50 77.39 77.77 0.39                            
2" 66.40 66.73 14.06 14.13 6.66 6.69 23.47 23.59 110.59 111.14 0.55                            
3" 116.20 116.78 24.59 24.71 11.67 11.73 41.08 41.28 193.53 194.50 0.97                            
4" 174.36 175.24 36.90 37.08 17.54 17.62 61.62 61.93 290.42 291.87 1.45                            
6" 273.94 275.31 57.96 58.25 27.54 27.68 96.82 97.30 456.26 458.54 2.28                            
8" 430.55 432.70 91.20 91.66 43.23 43.45 152.20 152.96 717.17 720.76 3.59                            

WATER USAGE RATES 1.005
Current Proposed

1ST 2,500 cubic feet: 2.13 2.14 per 100 cubic feet

over 2,500 but not over 25,000 cubic feet: 1.93 1.94 per 100 cubic feet

over 25,000 cubic feet: 1.87 1.88 per 100 cubic feet

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 34 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

Fund 592 ‐ SEWER FUND

ESTIMATED REVENUES
Dept 000‐REVEUNES
592‐000‐480‐003 PERMIT FEES ‐ ALBEMARLE 0 500 0 500 500 0 0
592‐000‐481‐003 ADM FEE‐ALBEMARLE 53,061 48,000 47,305 48,000 45,000 (3,000) (6)
592‐000‐481‐005 ADM FEE‐SHERMAN DAIRY 1,425 1,300 908 1,300 1,500 200 15
592‐000‐482‐004 SURCHARGE‐PRO POWDER 0 200 0 200 200 0 0
592‐000‐482‐005 SURCHARGE‐SHERMAN DAIRY 0 600 0 600 600 0 0
592‐000‐513‐000 GRANT‐SEWER TREATMENT 88,378 208,600 168,059 208,600 0 (208,600) (100)
592‐000‐631‐000 CONNECTION FEES 8,400 8,400 8,400 8,400 6,000 (2,400) (29)
592‐000‐631‐001 AVAILABILITY FEE‐PLANT 47,303 12,224 3,437 12,224 12,500 276 2
592‐000‐631‐002 AVAILABILITY FEE‐SEWER SYSTEM 36,763 9,500 2,681 9,500 9,500 0 0
592‐000‐642‐001 SEWER FEES ‐ CITY 734,285 796,282 604,630 796,282 800,263 3,981 1
592‐000‐642‐002 SEWER FEES ‐ RURAL 0 0 431 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐642‐004 CASCO ‐ USAGE 88,803 73,391 56,565 73,391 73,758 367 1
592‐000‐642‐005 CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FEES 70,048 93,357 50,593 93,357 93,824 467 1
592‐000‐642‐006 DEBT SERVICE FEES 200,012 200,000 141,086 200,000 201,000 1,000 1
592‐000‐642‐007 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FEES 225,913 241,630 159,305 241,630 242,838 1,208 1
592‐000‐642‐008 CITY‐RTS 293,017 313,021 211,696 313,021 314,586 1,565 1
592‐000‐642‐009 CASCO ‐ RTS 46,783 48,326 32,795 48,326 48,568 242 1
592‐000‐642‐011 CASCO ‐ CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 11,189 14,278 11,133 14,278 14,349 71 1
592‐000‐642‐012 SH TWSP ‐ USAGE 197,869 210,877 114,070 210,877 211,931 1,054 1
592‐000‐642‐013 SH TWSP ‐ RTS 78,833 82,374 52,237 82,374 82,786 412 1
592‐000‐642‐015 SH TWSP ‐ CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 18,852 24,163 12,478 24,163 24,284 121 1 10,488
592‐000‐658‐000 PENALITIES ‐ UTILITY BILLS 25,994 26,000 14,366 26,000 26,000 0 0
592‐000‐665‐000 INTEREST INCOME 5,650 7,500 3,017 7,500 7,500 0 0
592‐000‐665‐001 INTEREST INCOME‐SPECIAL ASSESS 17,485 17,071 3,669 17,071 17,071 0 0
592‐000‐665‐592 MARKET VALUE ADJUSTMENTS 158 0 (736) 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐672‐001 SPECIAL ASSESS‐MONROE PARK 0 0 1,537 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐672‐003 SPECIAL ASSESS‐ST JOSEPH 0 0 17,699 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐672‐004 SPECIAL ASSESS‐RAVINES 0 0 1,859 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐672‐005 SPECIAL ASSESS‐QUAKER ST 0 0 1,392 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐672‐007 SPECIAL ASSESS.‐SUPERIOR/GREEN 0 0 3,446 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐672‐009 SPECIAL ASSESS‐PARK AVE 17,500 0 0 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐672‐012 SPEC ASSESS REV‐KAZOO ST P1 0 0 2,429 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐674‐000 S HAVEN/CASCO W/S AUTH ADM FEE 10,169 10,000 5,133 10,000 10,000 0 0
592‐000‐678‐000 PAYROLL REIMBURSEMENTS 2,104 0 0 0 0 0 0

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 35 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

592‐000‐680‐000 MISCELLANEOUS OPERATING INCOME 1,661 3,500 1,465 3,500 3,500 0 0
592‐000‐680‐003 IPP REIMBURSE‐ALBEMARLE 18,516 37,300 15,184 37,300 25,000 (12,300) (33)
592‐000‐680‐004 IPP REIMBURSE‐PRO POWDER 103 0 0 0 0 0 0
592‐000‐680‐005 IPP REIMBURSE‐SHERMAN DAIRY 806 0 1,280 0 2,000 2,000 0
592‐000‐680‐013 REIMBURSEMENTS‐ALBEMARLE 6,462 12,924 0 12,924 12,924 0 0
Totals for dept 000‐REVEUNES 2,307,542 2,501,318 1,749,549 2,501,318 2,287,982 (213,336) (9)

    TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 2,307,542 2,501,318 1,749,549 2,501,318 2,287,982 (213,336) (9)

APPROPRIATIONS
Dept 558‐OPERATIONS
592‐558‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 62,775 68,931 42,326 68,931 70,654 1,723 3
592‐558‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 8 600 29 600 615 15 3
592‐558‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 6,653 6,641 4,160 6,641 6,807 166 3
592‐558‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 18,344 20,000 15,437 20,000 16,171 (3,829) (19)
592‐558‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 3,700 2,400 1,600 2,400 1,559 (841) (35)
592‐558‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 1,956 1,562 815 1,562 1,601 39 3
592‐558‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 5,334 6,147 3,518 6,147 6,301 154 3
592‐558‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 991 852 686 852 873 21 2
592‐558‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 443 705 681 705 723 18 3
592‐558‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 1,179 3,400 2,364 3,400 697 (2,703) (80)
592‐558‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,008 1,897 1,725 1,897 1,897 0 0
592‐558‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 1,037 758 260 758 758 0 0
592‐558‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 7,028 12,000 6,873 12,000 12,000 0 0
592‐558‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 662 3,000 2,006 3,000 2,000 (1,000) (33)
592‐558‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 9,272 9,600 7,045 9,600 9,600 0 0
592‐558‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 814 5,000 1,090 5,000 5,000 0 0
592‐558‐801‐008 SANITARY SEWER EVALUATION SURV 118,133 199,865 162,705 199,865 40,000 (159,865) (80)
592‐558‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 50,745 269,000 200,806 44,000 44,000 (225,000) (84)
592‐558‐820‐000 BAD DEBT EXPENSE 460 1,000 0 1,000 1,000 0 0
592‐558‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 3,093 4,000 2,056 4,000 4,000 0 0
592‐558‐855‐000 POSTAGE 6,283 7,588 4,325 7,588 7,588 0 0
592‐558‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 467 493 318 493 493 0 0
592‐558‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 399 300 0 300 300 0 0
592‐558‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 803 1,365 511 1,365 1,365 0 0
592‐558‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRCTRS 0 3,500 3,338 3,500 0 (3,500) (100)
592‐558‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIPM 9,007 4,000 3,981 4,000 5,000 1,000 25
592‐558‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 31,444 32,844 24,633 32,844 32,107 (737) (2)

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 36 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

592‐558‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 1,023 1,146 767 1,146 1,223 77 7
592‐558‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 1,768 893 691 893 893 0 0
592‐558‐968‐000 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 272,728 265,000 0 265,000 275,000 10,000 4
592‐558‐973‐000 SEWER SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION 0 0 301 0 225,000 225,000 0
592‐558‐975‐000 BUILDINGS/ADDITIONS IMPROVE 0 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 0
592‐558‐980‐000 OFFICE EQUIPMENT & FURNITURE 0 26,000 24,887 26,000 8,000 (18,000) (69)
Totals for dept 558‐OPERATIONS 618,557 960,487 519,934 735,487 833,225 (127,262) (13)

Dept 559‐TREATMENT
592‐559‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 158,345 151,496 113,502 151,496 155,283 3,787 3
592‐559‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 17,911 15,819 13,304 15,819 16,214 395 3
592‐559‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 13,197 13,900 10,731 13,900 9,937 (3,963) (29)
592‐559‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 11,280 9,900 7,520 9,900 6,183 (3,717) (38)
592‐559‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 1,983 3,430 1,790 3,430 3,516 86 3
592‐559‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 14,044 13,500 10,119 13,500 11,879 (1,621) (12)
592‐559‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 1,540 2,800 1,885 2,800 1,089 (1,711) (61)
592‐559‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 1,486 1,992 715 1,992 2,042 50 3
592‐559‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 2,827 6,400 4,509 6,400 1,765 (4,635) (72)
592‐559‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 897 1,897 728 1,897 1,897 0 0
592‐559‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 1,288 2,201 1,923 2,201 2,201 0 0
592‐559‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 38,172 48,000 37,116 48,000 48,000 0 0
592‐559‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 1,000 1,593 1,772 1,593 1,593 0 0
592‐559‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 9,356 12,000 6,147 12,000 12,000 0 0
592‐559‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 1,106 5,000 2,006 5,000 5,000 0 0
592‐559‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 56,587 59,000 43,587 59,000 59,000 0 0
592‐559‐803‐000 LICENSE & FEES 3,257 6,223 2,342 6,223 6,223 0 0
592‐559‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 4,468 4,705 2,792 4,705 4,705 0 0
592‐559‐855‐000 POSTAGE 11 75 61 75 75 0 0
592‐559‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 1,034 3,000 1,034 3,000 3,000 0 0
592‐559‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 114 182 114 114 0 0
592‐559‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 66,204 68,000 51,175 68,000 80,710 12,710 19
592‐559‐922‐000 UTILITIES ‐ WATER & SEWER 40,615 49,327 33,460 49,327 49,327 0 0
592‐559‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 16,911 22,766 12,494 22,766 22,766 0 0
592‐559‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRCTRS 1,956 6,000 5,329 6,000 1,517 (4,483) (75)
592‐559‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 41,437 37,944 15,657 37,944 37,944 0 0
592‐559‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 3,673 3,740 2,805 3,740 3,736 (4) (0)
592‐559‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 2,345 2,626 1,759 2,626 2,747 121 5
592‐559‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 580 500 258 500 500 0 0
592‐559‐973‐001 SEWER SYSTEM EQUIPMENT (2,859) 14,100 927 14,100 26,028 11,928 85

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 37 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

Totals for dept 559‐TREATMENT 510,651 568,048 387,629 568,048 576,991 8,943 2

Dept 560‐IPP PROGRAM
592‐560‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 12,254 12,342 8,617 12,342 12,651 309 3
592‐560‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 81 488 167 488 500 12 2
592‐560‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 484 1,131 391 1,131 1,159 28 2
592‐560‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 720 704 480 704 722 18 3
592‐560‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 155 263 137 263 270 7 3
592‐560‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 985 944 703 944 968 24 3
592‐560‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 117 124 122 124 127 3 2
592‐560‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 97 112 45 112 115 3 3
592‐560‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 180 140 290 140 144 4 3
592‐560‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 17,591 16,000 15,540 16,000 16,000 0 0
592‐560‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 3,090 15,000 5,865 15,000 15,000 0 0
592‐560‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 88 200 73 200 200 0 0
592‐560‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 663 1,000 0 1,000 1,000 0 0
592‐560‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 361 368 276 368 367 (1) (0)
Totals for dept 560‐IPP PROGRAM 36,866 48,816 32,706 48,816 49,223 407 1

Dept 561‐ADMINISTRATION
592‐561‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 144,778 146,160 103,032 146,160 149,814 3,654 3
592‐561‐704‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ PART‐TIME 6,145 6,994 4,577 6,994 7,169 175 3
592‐561‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 1,954 578 1,318 578 592 14 2
592‐561‐709‐000 OVERTIME ‐ PART‐TIME 64 90 69 90 92 2 2
592‐561‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 28,645 29,384 21,939 29,384 30,119 735 3
592‐561‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 2,657 2,589 1,695 2,589 2,654 65 3
592‐561‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 273 631 367 631 647 16 3
592‐561‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 11,967 12,363 8,475 12,363 12,672 309 3
592‐561‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 1,425 1,196 1,585 1,196 1,226 30 3
592‐561‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 1,975 2,050 1,010 2,050 2,101 51 2
592‐561‐714‐010 CAR ALLOWANCE 8,205 8,451 5,634 8,451 8,662 211 3
592‐561‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 989 2,193 898 2,193 2,248 55 3
592‐561‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 108 0 0 0 150 150 0
592‐561‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 4,446 7,000 5,291 7,000 8,000 1,000 14
592‐561‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 483 500 375 500 500 0 0
592‐561‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 929 0 239 0 1,000 1,000 0
592‐561‐870‐000 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES 87,800 87,800 65,850 87,800 87,800 0 0
592‐561‐911‐000 PROPERTY/FLEET/LIAB INSURANCE 32,310 31,000 29,358 31,000 35,000 4,000 13
592‐561‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 1,337 1,362 1,022 1,362 1,360 (2) (0)

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 38 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

592‐561‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 11,996 13,436 8,997 13,436 14,055 619 5
592‐561‐969‐101 ADMIN FEES ‐ GENERAL FUND 30,552 30,552 22,914 30,552 30,552 0 0
Totals for dept 561‐ADMINISTRATION 379,038 384,329 284,645 384,329 396,413 12,084 3

Dept 562‐LIFTSTATIONS‐ CASCO TOWNSHIP
592‐562‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 4,916 7,890 3,093 7,890 8,087 197 3
592‐562‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 2,157 2,527 723 2,527 2,590 63 2
592‐562‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 545 565 279 565 579 14 2
592‐562‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 0 351 0 351 360 9 3
592‐562‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 200 214 111 214 219 5 2
592‐562‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 534 604 289 604 619 15 2
592‐562‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 32 62 51 62 64 2 3
592‐562‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 37 56 14 56 57 1 2
592‐562‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 90 35 90 92 2 2
592‐562‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 66 0 66 66 0 0
592‐562‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 0 48 0 48 48 0 0
592‐562‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 0 30 0 30 30 0 0
592‐562‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 30 0 30 30 0 0
592‐562‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 13 0 0 0 0 0 0
592‐562‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 5,110 2,500 268 2,500 2,500 0 0
592‐562‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 525 400 323 400 400 0 0
592‐562‐855‐000 POSTAGE 0 4 0 4 4 0 0
592‐562‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 0 500 0 500 500 0 0
592‐562‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 38 0 38 38 0 0
592‐562‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 5,042 5,000 3,556 5,000 3,500 (1,500) (30)
592‐562‐922‐000 UTILITIES ‐ WATER & SEWER 439 600 399 600 360 (240) (40)
592‐562‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 8 0 0 0 0 0 0
592‐562‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 4,211 4,000 3,720 4,000 4,000 0 0
592‐562‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 2,221 2,301 1,726 2,301 2,330 29 1
592‐562‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 259 290 194 290 304 14 5
Totals for dept 562‐LIFTSTATIONS‐ CASCO TOWNSHIP 26,249 28,166 14,781 28,166 26,777 (1,389) (5)

Dept 563‐OPERATIONS ‐  CASCO TOWNSHIP
592‐563‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 121 280 1,178 280 287 7 3
592‐563‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 264 64 582 64 66 2 3
592‐563‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 25 64 506 64 66 2 3
592‐563‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 0 6 0 6 6 0 0
592‐563‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 5 7 4 7 7 0 0
592‐563‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 28 21 127 21 22 1 5

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 39 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

592‐563‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 0 3 14 3 3 0 0
592‐563‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 1 3 11 3 3 0 0
592‐563‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 3 33 3 3 0 0
592‐563‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 164 153 123 153 153 0 0
592‐563‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 86 61 21 61 61 0 0
592‐563‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 580 793 549 793 793 0 0
592‐563‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 122 166 122 122 0 0
592‐563‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 766 671 516 671 671 0 0
592‐563‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 9,951 0 2,714 0 5,000 5,000 0
592‐563‐801‐008 SANITARY SEWER EVALUTION SURV 7,976 15,249 13,436 15,249 0 (15,249) (100)
592‐563‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 4,972 15,000 12,662 15,000 5,000 (10,000) (67)
592‐563‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 255 268 168 268 268 0 0
592‐563‐855‐000 POSTAGE 453 610 251 610 610 0 0
592‐563‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 39 40 26 40 40 0 0
592‐563‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 33 6 0 6 6 0 0
592‐563‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 66 110 42 110 110 0 0
592‐563‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 0 500 276 500 0 (500) (100)
592‐563‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 163 500 329 500 500 0 0
592‐563‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 8,152 8,518 6,389 8,518 8,317 (201) (2)
592‐563‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 84 94 63 94 99 5 5
592‐563‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 146 73 57 73 73 0 0
Totals for dept 563‐OPERATIONS ‐  CASCO TOWNSHIP 34,330 43,219 40,243 43,219 22,286 (20,933) (48)

Dept 564‐OPERATIONS ‐ SOUTH HAVEN TWP
592‐564‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 625 628 378 628 644 16 3
592‐564‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 89 227 64 227 233 6 3
592‐564‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 126 144 106 144 148 4 3
592‐564‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 0 14 0 14 14 0 0
592‐564‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 13 16 9 16 16 0 0
592‐564‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 53 48 32 48 49 1 2
592‐564‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 5 8 0 8 8 0 0
592‐564‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 5 6 3 6 6 0 0
592‐564‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 6 0 6 6 0 0
592‐564‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 520 488 391 488 488 0 0
592‐564‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 271 195 68 195 195 0 0
592‐564‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 1,838 2,535 1,738 2,535 2,535 0 0
592‐564‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 390 524 390 390 0 0
592‐564‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 2,425 2,145 1,635 2,145 2,145 0 0
592‐564‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 213 500 285 500 500 0 0

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 40 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

592‐564‐801‐008 SANITARY SEWER EVALUATION SURV 25,256 47,608 42,548 47,608 0 (47,608) (100)
592‐564‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 16,413 11,700 8,500 11,700 11,700 0 0
592‐564‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 809 858 532 858 858 0 0
592‐564‐855‐000 POSTAGE 1,435 1,950 796 1,950 1,950 0 0
592‐564‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 122 127 83 127 127 0 0
592‐564‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 104 20 0 20 20 0 0
592‐564‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 210 351 134 351 351 0 0
592‐564‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 0 0 873 0 0 0 0
592‐564‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 516 195 1,041 195 1,500 1,305 669
592‐564‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 8,929 9,327 6,995 9,327 9,106 (221) (2)
592‐564‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 268 300 201 300 314 14 5
592‐564‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 662 234 181 234 234 0 0
Totals for dept 564‐OPERATIONS ‐ SOUTH HAVEN TWP 60,907 80,020 67,117 80,020 33,537 (46,483) (58)

Dept 566‐TREATMENT ‐ CASCO TWP
592‐566‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 0 0 0 0 16 16 0
592‐566‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 148 153 60 153 153 0 0
592‐566‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 239 177 153 177 177 0 0
592‐566‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 7,427 3,355 3,343 3,355 3,355 0 0
592‐566‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 128 97 128 128 0 0
592‐566‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 1,942 549 458 549 549 0 0
592‐566‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 274 0 166 0 0 0 0
592‐566‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 10,671 10,000 5,866 10,000 10,000 0 0
592‐566‐803‐000 LICENSE & FEES 2,685 3,000 2,647 3,000 3,000 0 0
592‐566‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 867 378 223 378 378 0 0
592‐566‐855‐000 POSTAGE 3 6 5 6 6 0 0
592‐566‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 105 500 77 500 500 0 0
592‐566‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 9 0 9 9 0 0
592‐566‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 12,470 8,000 3,689 8,000 8,000 0 0
592‐566‐922‐000 UTILITIES ‐ WATER & SEWER 7,539 5,000 2,402 5,000 5,000 0 0
592‐566‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 3,473 2,100 1,074 2,100 2,100 0 0
592‐566‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 225 122 867 122 122 0 0
592‐566‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 6,973 5,000 1,912 5,000 5,000 0 0
592‐566‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 951 969 727 969 968 (1) (0)
592‐566‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 192 215 144 215 225 10 5
592‐566‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 105 37 21 37 37 0 0
592‐566‐973‐001 SEWER SYSTEM EQUIPMENT 686 1,500 265 1,500 3,981 2,481 165
Totals for dept 566‐TREATMENT ‐ CASCO TWP 56,975 41,198 24,196 41,198 43,704 2,506 6

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 41 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

Dept 567‐TREATMENT ‐ SH TWP
592‐567‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 131 488 190 488 488 0 0
592‐567‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 204 566 484 566 566 0 0
592‐567‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 5,708 15,000 10,994 15,000 7,500 (7,500) (50)
592‐567‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 1 410 306 410 410 0 0
592‐567‐748‐000 MOTOR FUEL 1,277 2,200 1,450 2,200 1,755 (445) (20)
592‐567‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 714 1,500 524 1,500 1,500 0 0
592‐567‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,477 18,000 16,168 18,000 7,500 (10,500) (58)
592‐567‐803‐000 LICENSE & FEES 2,102 3,500 3,058 3,500 2,000 (1,500) (43)
592‐567‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 670 1,209 706 1,209 1,209 0 0
592‐567‐855‐000 POSTAGE 1 20 16 20 20 0 0
592‐567‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 251 410 242 410 410 0 0
592‐567‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 29 0 29 29 0 0
592‐567‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 10,310 15,000 11,682 15,000 12,000 (3,000) (20)
592‐567‐922‐000 UTILITIES ‐ WATER & SEWER 6,436 11,000 7,607 11,000 7,500 (3,500) (32)
592‐567‐923‐000 UTILITIES ‐ GAS 2,346 4,000 3,267 4,000 3,300 (700) (18)
592‐567‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 448 3,400 2,287 3,400 390 (3,010) (89)
592‐567‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 9,825 9,750 5,507 9,750 9,750 0 0
592‐567‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 1,036 1,055 791 1,055 1,053 (2) (0)
592‐567‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 615 615 461 615 720 105 17
592‐567‐958‐000 SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 95 117 68 117 117 0 0
592‐567‐973‐001 SEWER SYSTEM EQUIPMENT 2,173 0 114 0 2,389 2,389 0
Totals for dept 567‐TREATMENT ‐ SH TWP 53,820 88,269 65,922 88,269 60,606 (27,663) (31)

Dept 569‐LIFSTATIONS ‐ SOUTH HAVEN TWP
592‐569‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 11,263 15,781 8,208 15,781 16,176 395 3
592‐569‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 7,008 8,354 6,412 8,354 8,563 209 3
592‐569‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 2,009 2,146 1,306 2,146 2,200 54 3
592‐569‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 0 1,335 0 1,335 1,368 33 2
592‐569‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 268 495 258 495 507 12 2
592‐569‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 1,370 1,207 1,102 1,207 1,237 30 2
592‐569‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 129 235 171 235 241 6 3
592‐569‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 104 213 54 213 218 5 2
592‐569‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 179 117 179 183 4 2
592‐569‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 155 0 155 155 0 0
592‐569‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 0 113 0 113 113 0 0
592‐569‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 0 70 0 70 70 0 0
592‐569‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 70 0 70 70 0 0
592‐569‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 31 200 0 200 200 0 0

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 42 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

592‐569‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 12,442 7,000 1,295 7,000 7,000 0 0
592‐569‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 2,174 1,100 1,172 1,100 1,100 0 0
592‐569‐855‐000 POSTAGE 0 10 0 10 10 0 0
592‐569‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 0 500 0 500 500 0 0
592‐569‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 89 0 89 89 0 0
592‐569‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 16,693 14,000 11,403 14,000 14,000 0 0
592‐569‐922‐000 UTILITIES ‐ WATER & SEWER 1,025 834 931 834 834 0 0
592‐569‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 19 0 0 0 0 0 0
592‐569‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 10,916 8,342 747 8,342 8,342 0 0
592‐569‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 8,883 9,199 6,899 9,199 9,316 117 1
592‐569‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 612 685 459 685 717 32 5
592‐569‐973‐001 SEWER SYSTEM EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 14,700 14,700 0
Totals for dept 569‐LIFSTATIONS ‐ SOUTH HAVEN TWP 74,946 72,312 40,534 72,312 87,909 15,597 22

Dept 570‐LIFTSTATIONS ‐ CITY
592‐570‐703‐000 SALARIES & WAGES ‐ FULL‐TIME 22,642 22,893 12,667 22,893 23,465 572 3
592‐570‐708‐000 OVERTIME ‐ FULL‐TIME 3,664 5,978 3,195 5,978 6,127 149 2
592‐570‐710‐000 HEALTH/DENTAL INSURANCE 3,024 904 1,971 904 927 23 3
592‐570‐710‐001 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF INSURANCE 0 562 0 562 576 14 2
592‐570‐712‐000 WORKERS COMPENSATION 341 592 344 592 607 15 3
592‐570‐713‐000 PAYROLL TAXES 1,973 1,751 1,189 1,751 1,795 44 3
592‐570‐713‐001 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 203 99 203 99 101 2 2
592‐570‐713‐002 LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 157 90 63 90 92 2 2
592‐570‐716‐000 EMPLOYER MERS CONTRIBUTIONS 0 260 93 260 267 7 3
592‐570‐727‐000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 579 40 579 579 0 0
592‐570‐729‐001 OTHER CLOTHING & SUPPLIES 0 424 0 424 424 0 0
592‐570‐741‐000 OPERATING SUPPLIES 0 261 0 261 261 0 0
592‐570‐742‐000 SMALL TOOLS 0 261 0 261 261 0 0
592‐570‐801‐000 PROFESSIONAL/CONSULTING FEES 117 2,000 0 2,000 2,000 0 0
592‐570‐802‐000 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES (20,894) 30,000 6,115 30,000 30,000 0 0
592‐570‐850‐000 TELEPHONE 538 700 330 700 700 0 0
592‐570‐855‐000 POSTAGE 0 39 0 39 39 0 0
592‐570‐860‐000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCES/TRAINING 0 275 0 275 275 0 0
592‐570‐900‐000 PRINTING/PUBLISHING 0 100 0 100 100 0 0
592‐570‐921‐000 UTILITIES ‐ ELECTRIC 10,054 16,000 8,477 16,000 16,000 0 0
592‐570‐922‐000 UTILITIES ‐ WATER & SEWER 3,841 4,300 2,917 4,300 4,300 0 0
592‐570‐931‐000 REPAIRS/MAINT‐BUILDS & STRUCTR 71 0 0 0 0 0 0
592‐570‐933‐000 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE ‐ EQUIP 14,088 20,000 1,846 20,000 20,000 0 0
592‐570‐941‐000 MOTOR POOL FEES 31,167 31,761 23,821 31,761 31,751 (10) (0)

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 43 of 46



0.5% RATE INCR
INCLUDED

11‐12 12‐13 12‐13 12‐13 13‐14 CHANGE FROM
ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY PROJECTED REQUESTED 12‐13 AMENDED PCT

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 03/31/13 ACTIVITY BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE

SEWER FUND
03/20/2013                                     BUDGET REPORT FOR CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN                                               
                                                   FY 2013‐2014 PROPOSED BUDGET                                                   

592‐570‐942‐000 INFORMATION SERVICES FEES 2,283 2,557 1,712 2,557 2,675 118 5
Totals for dept 570‐LIFTSTATIONS ‐ CITY 73,269 142,386 64,983 142,386 143,322 936 1

Dept 965‐OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
592‐965‐999‐250 OPER TRANSFER OUT‐DDA 3,479 2,500 278 2,500 1,325 (1,175) (47)
592‐965‐999‐371 OPER TRANS OUT‐2003 CAP BOND 200,000 200,000 34,273 200,000 200,000 0 0
592‐965‐999‐467 OPER TRANS OUT‐SEWER REHAB 65,730 44,000 9,312 44,000 43,833 (167) (0)
Totals for dept 965‐OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT 269,209 246,500 43,863 246,500 245,158 (1,342) (1)

    TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,194,817 2,703,750 1,586,553 2,478,750 2,519,151 (184,599) (7)

    NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS ‐ FUND 592 112,725 (202,432) 162,996 22,568 (231,169) (28,737) 14
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 6,866,388 6,979,106 6,979,113 6,979,106 7,001,674 22,568 0
    ENDING FUND BALANCE 6,979,106 6,776,674 7,142,109 7,001,674 6,770,505 (6,169) 0

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 44 of 46



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
PROPOSED SEWER RATES

FOR FY 2014

SEWER STANDBY RATES

Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed
Meter Size Debt Debt Capital Capital Capital Capital R T S  R T S  0.50% DIFFERENCE
(Inches) Service Service Repl Repl Impr Impr Total Total

1.005 1.005 1.005 1.005

5/8" - 3/4" 5.40 5.43 1.85 1.86 5.64 5.66 7.72 7.76 20.61 20.71 0.10                            
1" 7.20 7.24 2.47 2.48 7.52 7.56 10.31 10.36 27.50 27.64 0.14                            
1 1/4" 10.32 10.37 3.52 3.54 14.04 14.11 14.76 14.83 42.64 42.85 0.21                            
1 1/2" 13.44 13.51 4.59 4.61 20.06 20.16 19.26 19.36 57.35 57.64 0.29                            
2" 19.20 19.30 6.56 6.59 27.50 27.64 27.45 27.59 80.71 81.11 0.40                            
3" 33.60 33.77 11.48 11.54 35.11 35.29 48.04 48.28 128.23 128.87 0.64                            
4" 50.40 50.65 17.23 17.32 52.67 52.93 72.08 72.44 192.38 193.34 0.96                            
6" 79.20 79.60 27.06 27.20 82.76 83.17 113.26 113.83 302.28 303.79 1.51                            

1.005
Current Proposed

SEWER USAGE RATE 2.53 2.54 per 100 cubic feet

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 45 of 46



3/20/2013

Monthly Usage in Cu. Ft. 1000
Current Water Rate per 100 Cu. Ft. 2.13
Proposed Water Rate per 100 Cu. Ft. 2.14
Current Sewer Rate per 100 Cu. Ft. 2.53
Proposed Sewer Rate per 100 Cu. Ft. 2.54
Water Meter Size 5/8"
Monthly Electric Usage - KWH 750         
Current Rate per KWH 0.100
Proposed Rate per KWH 0.101

Percent
City Customers Current Proposed Change Change

Water Usage 21.30      21.41      0.11        0.5%
Water Capital Replacement 1.67        1.68        0.01        0.5%
Water Ready-To-Serve 5.88        5.91        0.03        0.5%
Water Capital Improvement 3.51        3.53        0.02        0.5%
Water Plant Debt Service 12.75      12.81      0.06        0.5%
Sewer Usage 25.30      25.43      0.13        0.5%
Sewer Capital Replacement 1.68        1.69        0.01        0.5%
Sewer Ready-To-Serve 7.03        7.07        0.04        0.5%
Sewer Debt Service 4.80        4.82        0.02        0.5%
Sewer Capital Improvement 5.13        5.16        0.03        0.5%
Electric Usage 75.00      75.38      0.38        0.5%
Basic Electric Charge 5.50        5.53        0.03        0.5%

Total Utility Bill 169.55    170.40    0.85$     0.5%

Total Water Bill 45.11      45.34      0.23      0.5%
Total Sewer Bill 43.94      44.16      0.22      0.5%
Total Electric Bill 80.50      80.90      0.40      0.5%

Percent
South Haven Township Current Proposed Change Change

Water Usage 21.30      21.41      0.11        0.5%
Water Capital Replacement 1.67        1.68        0.01        0.5%
Water Ready-To-Serve 5.88        5.91        0.03        0.5%
Water Plant Debt Service 12.75      12.81      0.06        0.5%
Water Authority Debt Service 13.00      13.00      -          0.0%
Sewer Usage 25.30      25.43      0.13        0.5%
Sewer Capital Replacement 1.68        1.69        0.01        0.5%
Sewer Ready-To-Serve 7.03        7.07        0.04        0.5%
Sewer Authority Debt Service 18.00      18.00      -          0.0%
Electric Usage 75.00      75.38      0.38        0.5%
Basic Electric Charge 5.50        5.53        0.03        0.5%

Total Utility Bill 187.11    187.89    0.78$     0.4%

Total Water Bill 54.60      54.81      0.21      0.4%
Total Sewer Bill 52.01      52.18      0.17      0.3%
Total Electric Bill 80.50      80.90      0.40      0.5%

Percent
Casco Township Current Proposed Change Change

Water Usage 21.30      21.41      0.11        0.5%
Water Capital Replacement 1.67        1.68        0.01        0.5%
Water Ready-To-Serve 5.88        5.91        0.03        0.5%
Water Plant Debt Service 12.75      12.81      0.06        0.5%
Water Authority Debt Service 24.00      24.00      -          0.0%
Sewer Usage 25.30      25.43      0.13        0.5%
Sewer Capital Replacement 1.68        1.69        0.01        0.5%
Sewer Ready-To-Serve 7.03        7.07        0.04        0.5%
Sewer Authority Debt Service 36.00      36.00      -          0.0%

Total Utility Bill 135.61    135.99    0.38$     0.3%

Total Water Bill 65.60      65.81      0.21      0.3%
Total Sewer Bill 70.01      70.18      0.17      0.2%

Percent
Covert Township Current Proposed Change Change

Water Usage 21.30      21.41      0.11        0.5%
Water Capital Replacement 1.67        1.68        0.01        0.5%
Water Ready-To-Serve 5.88        5.91        0.03        0.5%
Water Plant Debt Service 12.75      12.81      0.06        0.5%

Total  Covert Utility Bill 41.60      41.81     0.21$     0.5%

Percent
Geneva Township Current Proposed Change Change

Electric Usage 75.00      75.38      0.38        0.5%
Basic Electric Charge 5.50        5.53        0.03        0.5%

Total Utility Bill 80.50      80.90     0.40$     0.5%

Residential Utility Bill Comparison
PROPOSED RATES EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2013

 
 
 
March 25, 2013 
Board of Public Utilities 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 46 of 46


	03-25-2013 BPU Workshop Agenda
	03-25-2013 BPU Agenda
	02-26-2013 Sp. Mtg. Minutes
	6. Cost of Energy
	A. 2013 Billings - All Charges
	B. 2012 Billings - All Charges

	7. Financial Reports
	A. Water Fund CuFt Comparisons
	B. Water Fund Financial Statement
	C. Sewer Fund Financial Statement
	D. Electric Fund KWH Comparisons
	E. Electric Fund Financial Statement

	8. 2013-03-15 Sewer Study Progress Report
	9. Unresolved Issues Report
	10. Meijer Electric Construction
	BPU Staff Report - Meijer Store Electrical Service Installation
	Bid Number 2013-06 Bid Tabulation
	GRP Engineering Recommendation Letter

	11. Water, Sewer and Electric Rate Adjustments.pdf
	A. ELECTRIC FUND  FY 14 PROPOSED BUDGET
	B. PROPOSED ELECTRIC RATES FOR FY 2014
	C. WATER FUND  FY 14 PROPOSED BUDGET
	D. PROPOSED WATER RATES FOR FY 2014
	E. SEWER FUND  FY 14 PROPOSED BUDGET
	F. PROPOSED SEWER RATES FOR FY 2014
	G. FY 2014 Utility Bill Comparison




